CA Harsh Chandrakant Ruparelia
Registered Valuer — Securities or Financial Assets
(IBBI Registration No. IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106 and
Membership No. ICMAI RVO/S&FA/00054)

STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL

To,

The Board of Directors,

Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Thermax Instrumentation Limited
Thermax House, 14, Mumbai Pune Road,
Wakdewadi, Pune — 411 003.

Sub: Report on recommendation of Share Entitlement Ratio for Scheme of
Arrangement between Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited (“TCSL” or

“Demerged Company’) and Thermax Instrumentation Limited (“TIL” or

Dear Sirs,

I refer to my engagement letter, whereby CA Harsh Chandrakant Ruparelia, Registered
Valuer — Securities or Financial Assets (hereinafter referred to as “the Valuer” or “1”)
has been appointed by the management of Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited [CIN:
U29299PN2009PLC134761] and Thermax Instrumentation Limited [CIN:
U72200MH1996PTC099050] to issue a report containing recommendation of Share
Entitlement Ratio for the proposed Demerger of the Cooling Business (as defined in
the Scheme) of TCSL and its vesting into TIL in terms of the Draft Scheme of
Arrangement under Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules & regulations framed thereunder.

TCSL and TIL may be individually referred to as “Company” or “Demerged Company”
or “Resulting Company”, as the case maybe in terms of the Draft Scheme and the

context stated therein and collectively hereinafter referred to as “Companies”.
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CA Harsh C. Ruparelia
Registered Valuer — Securities or Financial Assets

The Proposed Scheme would help in achieving benefits as provided for in Rationale to

the Draft Scheme.

In the following paragraphs, | have summarized my understanding of the key facts;

key information relied upon, basis of recommendation and limitations to my scope of

work. The report is structured as under:
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Purpose of this Report
Background

Sources of Information
Valuation Approach
Share Entitlement Ratio

Exclusions and Scope Limitations

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

I understand that the management of the Companies is contemplating a
Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules and
Regulations framed thereunder for demerger of the Cooling Business of TCSL
into TIL in accordance with the applicable laws. The demerger is proposed to
take effect from the Appointed Date as provided in the Scheme.

Further, as part of the Scheme, it is proposed that the face value of the equity
shares of TCSL will to be reduced from INR 10 per share to INR 5 per share
without any pay-out to the shareholder(s).

In this regard, CA Harsh Chandrakant Ruparelia, Registered Valuer — Securities
or Financial Assets has been appointed by the Companies for recommendation
of Share Entitlement Ratio for the proposed demerger considering 30%

September 2022 as the Valuation Date.

BACKGROUND

THERMAX COOLING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (“TCSL™)

TCSL was incorporated on 6" October 2009 under the erstwhile provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of TCSL is currently situated at
Thermax House, 14, Mumbai Pune Road, Wakdewadi, Pune — 411 003 in the

State of Maharashtra.

The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of TCSL as on

the date of this report is as under:
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2.1.3

2.2
2.2.1

2.2.2

Particulars Amount in INR

Authorised Share Capital
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 50,00,00,000

Total 50,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each, fully paid- 20,00,00,000

up*

Total 20,00,00,000

* As part of the Scheme, it is proposed that the face value of the equity shares of TCSL
will be reduced from INR 10 per share to INR 5 per share without any pay-out to the

shareholder(s).

TCSL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Thermax Limited. It is primarily engaged
in the business of providing various wet and dry cooling solutions for removal
of heat from different processes in manufacturing industries. TCSL is also
providing cooling solutions and providing air cooling condensers to power
projects of Thermax Limited and external customers for power and energy
business. Further, it is also engaged in the business of supply of equipment for
power plant such as Electrostatic Precipitators (for plant sizes more than 300

MW) and Regenerative Air Preheaters (for plant sizes more than 300 MW)

THERMAX INSTRUMENTATION LIMITED (“TIL™)

TIL was incorporated on 23" April 1996 under the erstwhile provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of TIL is currently situated at
Thermax House, 14, Mumbai Pune Road, Wakdewadi, Pune — 411 003 in the

State of Maharashtra.

The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of TIL as on the

date of this report is as under:

Particulars Amount in Rs.

Authorised Share Capital
90,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 9,00,00,000
1,50,00,000, 1% Non-Cumulative Redeemable 15,00,00,000

Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Total 24,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
90,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid-up 9,00,00,000

Total 9,00,00,000
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2.2.3 TIL is also a wholly owned subsidiary of Thermax Limited. It is primarily

engaged in rendering erection, commissioning, civil works and operation and

maintenance services for turnkey contracts for power plants.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

3.1. For the purpose of the recommendation of the Fair Share Entitlement Ratio, |

have relied upon the following sources of information provided by the

management of the Companies:

@

(b)

©)

(@

©)
®

@

()

®

@

Audited Financial Statements of the Companies for the year ended 31°
March 2022;

Management certified provisional financial statements relating to the
Demerged Undertaking of TCSL as on 30" September 2022;
Management certified provisional financial statements relating of TIL as
on 30" September 2022;

Management certified projected financial statements (including key
underlying assumptions) comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement relating to the Demerged Undertaking
of TCSL for the period 15t October 2022 to 315t March 2023 and for FY 23-
24 to FY 26-27;

Shareholding pattern of the Companies as on the date of this report;
Draft Scheme of Arrangement (as certified by the management of the
Companies);

Terms of Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
(“NCRPS”) to be discharged as consideration pursuant to the Scheme;
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Companies;

Other relevant details of the Companies such as its history, past and
present activities, future plans and prospects, and other relevant
information; and

Such other information and explanations as required and which have been

provided by the Management of the Companies.

Besides the above information and documents, there may be other information

provided by the Companies which may not have been perused by me in any detalil, if

not considered relevant for the defined scope. The Companies have been provided with

the opportunity to review the draft report as part of the standard practice to make sure

that factual inaccuracy & omissions are avoided in the final report.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

VALUATION APPROACH

“Value is a word of many meanings”. The term “value” can have different
connotations depending upon the purpose for which it is intended to be used.
The Valuation of equity shares of any Company would need to be based on a
fair value concept. The purpose of fair value is to enable valuer to exercise his
discretion and judgement in light of all circumstances, in order to arrive at a
value, which is fair to all parties.

For the purpose of the valuation exercise, generally the following valuation
approaches are adopted:

(a) the ‘Underlying Asset’ approach;

(b) the ‘Income’ approach; and

(c) the ‘Market’ approach.

‘Underlying Asset’ Approach

(a) In case of the ‘Underlying Asset’ approach, the value per equity share is
determined by arriving at the Net Assets (Assets Less Liabilities) of the
Business Undertaking / Company. The said approach is considered taking
into account fair value of assets and liabilities, to the extent possible, the
respective asset would fetch or liability is payable as on the Valuation
Date. The following adjustments be made to arrive at the Fair Value per
Share as per the ‘Underlying Asset’ Approach at Fair Values:

e The Fair Value of Quoted Shares held by the Business Undertaking /
Company, if any, be considered at Market Value of such shares;

e The Fair Value of Unquoted Shares held by the Business Undertaking
/ Company, if any, in other entities be arrived at as per suitable
approach to that entity to arrive at Fair Value of Investments held by
the Business Undertaking / Company;

e The Fair Value of Immovable properties, if any, held by the Business
Undertaking / Company be considered at Market Value / Ready
Reckoner Value as on the Valuation Date, made available by the
management of the Company;

e Adjustments may be made to book value of any other assets for their
recoverability on conservative basis after taking into account the
management representations and their estimate of the recoverability
of the same;

e Liabilities of the Business Undertaking / Company be considered at
their respective Book Values or their payable amounts as on the

Valuation Date; and
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4.4.

(b)

Potential Contingent Liability, if any, be considered based on the
discussions with the management and their reasonable estimate of

the outflow on account of the same.

Alternatively, the value may be determined considering the book value of
the net assets (Assets Less Liabilities) of the Business Undertaking /

Company and/or replacement cost basis, to the extent possible.

‘Income’ Approach

Under the ‘Income’ approach, the equity shares of the company can be valued

using Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method — FCFF approach or FCFE approach

or such other approaches.
DCF Method — FCFF Approach (for instance)

®

Q)

Under the DCF method, the projected free cash flows from business
operations after considering fund requirements for projected capital
expenditure, incremental working capital and other adjustments are
discounted at the Weight Average Cost of Capital (WACC). The sum of the
discounted value of such free cash flows and discounted value of
perpetuity is the value of the business.

Using the DCF method involves determining the following:

Estimating the future free cash flows:

Future Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated
by the entity that are available to the providers of entity’s capital. The
free cash flows under the FCFF method are determined by adjusting
the Profit after tax for Depreciation and other Non-Cash Items,
Interest, Incremental working capital requirements and capital
expenditure.

Time Frame of such cash flows:

The time frame for free cash flows is determined by separating the
value of the business in the explicit projection period and the post
explicit projection period.

Appropriate Discount rate (WACC):

Under DCF-FCFF Method, the time value of money is recognized by
applying a discount rate viz. WACC to the future free cash flows to
arrive at their present value as on the date of valuation. WACC is
considered as the most appropriate discount rate in the DCF Method,
since it reflects both the business and the financial risk of the Business
Undertaking / Company. In other words, WACC is generally the

weighted average of the company’s cost of equity capital and debt.

Page 6 of 13



CA Harsh C. Ruparelia
Registered Valuer — Securities or Financial Assets

Normally, in stable growth companies, the cost of equity is
determined by using Capital Asset Pricing Model (‘CAPM").

e Terminal or perpetuity value:
The Perpetuity value of an ongoing business is determined as present
value of the estimated future free cash flows by capitalizing the free
cash flows of the last year of the explicit projection period into
perpetuity using an appropriate rate of return and perpetual growth
rate.

e Valuation of Investment in other entities
The investment of the Business Undertaking / Company in other
entities is to be valued as per the valuation methodologies suitable to
that entity.

e Value for Equity Shareholders:
The Value of Business so arrived considering the Net Present Value of
the explicit period and terminal or perpetuity value is adjusted for net
of cash & cash equivalents, loan funds and surplus assets viz.
Deposits, Investments, etc. as on the valuation date to arrive at the
value of the Business Undertaking or value for equity shareholders as

on the Valuation Date.

4.5, ‘Market’ Approach

@

(b)

©

Market Price Method (“MP_Method”)

Since the Companies are not listed on any stock exchange, the market price
of the equity share of the Companies are not available and the said method
is not applicable for the current valuation exercise.

Comparable Companies Multiple Method (“CCM Method”)

Under the CCM method, the value of the business / equity share of an
unlisted company is determined based on publicly available information of
the market valuations of the comparable companies on the basis of
multiples derived from such market information. This method is applied on
the premise that markets are perfect and have captured all the information
and factors, which are reflected through their market valuations.

Comparable Transaction Method (“CTM”)

Under the CTM, the value of the business / equity share of an unlisted
company is determined considering the past transactions of similar
companies as well as the market value of comparable companies that have

an equivalent business model to the business / company being valued.
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4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

The value so arrived at under any of the approaches is divided by the
outstanding number of equity shares as on the Valuation Date to arrive at the
value per equity share of the Company(ies).

Considering the nature of business of the Demerged Undertaking of TCSL and
based on the review of projected financial statements of the Demerged
Undertaking of TCSL made available to me by TCSL, | am of the view that
‘Income’ approach may be appropriate for the current valuation exercise for
arriving at fair value per of the Demerged Undertaking of TCSL as the assets
may not provide true reflection of the earning capacity of the Demerged
Undertaking of TCSL. Further, based on the analysis and in my opinion, it may
not be appropriate to consider CCM or CTM methods for the current valuation
exercise, since the present nature or size of operations, financial parameters,
etc. of the Demerged Undertaking may not reflect the true potential of business
operations as that of the comparables.

Further, as the consideration for merger is proposed to be discharged by
way of issue of NCRPS, the valuation of equity shares of TIL is not required
to be undertaken.

It is universally recognized that the valuation is not an exact science and that
estimating values necessarily involves selecting a method or approach that is
suitable for the purpose. The application of any particular method of valuation
depends upon various factors including nature of its business, overall objective

of the transaction and the purpose of valuation.

SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO

In the ultimate analysis, recommendation will have to involve the exercise of
judicious discretion and judgment taking into account all the relevant factors.
There will always be several factors, e.g., present and prospective competition,
yield on comparable securities and market sentiments, etc. which are not
evident from the face of the balance sheets but which will strongly influence the
worth of a business / share. This concept is also recognized in judicial decisions.
For example, Viscount Simon Bd in Gold Coast Selection Trust Ltd. vs.
Humphrey reported in 30 TC 209 (House of Lords) and quoted with approval by
the Supreme Court of India in the case reported in 176 ITR 417 as under:

‘If the asset takes the form of fully paid shares, the valuation will take into
account not only the terms of the agreement but a number of other factors,
such as prospective yield, marketability, the general outlook for the type of
business of the company which has allotted the shares, the result of a
contemporary prospectus offering similar shares for subscription, the capital

position of the company, so forth. There may also be an element of value in the
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5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

6.2.

fact that the holding of the shares gives control of the company. If the asset is
difficult to value, but is nonetheless of a money value, the best valuation
possible must be made. Valuation is an art, not an exact science. Mathematical
certainty is not demanded, nor indeed is it possible.’

The fair basis of Share Entitlement Ratio under the Scheme of Arrangement
would have to be determined after taking into consideration all the factors
and approach mentioned hereinabove. It is however important to note that
in doing so, | am not attempting to arrive at the absolute value per share
of the Companies or the Demerged Undertaking. The exercise is to work out
relative value of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company and of
the Resulting Company to facilitate the determination of a share entitlement
ratio solely for the purpose of proposed Scheme.

The value per equity shares of the Demerged Undertaking of TCSL as per the
‘Income’ approach — DCF Method works out to INR 8.49 per equity share —
Refer Annexure A.

Considering the terms of the RPS, | have thought it appropriate to consider the
face value of INR 100 each of the RPS of TIL for the purpose of determining the
share entitlement ratio.

In the light of the above and on consideration of all the relevant factors and
circumstances as discussed and outlined hereinabove earlier in this report
(including disclaimer and exclusions given below), in my opinion, I recommend
that the share entitlement ratio for the proposed transfer of the Demerged
Undertaking of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company as given

under, would be fair and reasonable:

“85 (Eighty-Five) 102 Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares (*“NCRPS”) of INR 100 (Rupees Hundred) each of the
Resulting Company shall be issued and allotted for every 1,000 (One
Thousand) fully paid-up equity share of INR 10* (Rupees Ten) each
held in the Demerged Company”

* On capital reduction becoming effective as provided in the Scheme, INR 10 to be read
as INR 5.

EXCLUSIONS AND SCOPE LIMITATIONS

The report is subject to the scope limitations detailed hereinafter. As such, the
report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant
documents referred to herein.

No investigation of the title of assets of the Companies has been made for the

purpose of my recommendation and their claim to such rights has been
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6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

assumed to be valid as represented by the management of the Companies.
Therefore, no responsibility is assumed for matters of a legal nature.

The recommendation is based on the estimates of future financial performance
as projected by the management of TCSL, which represents their view of
reasonable expectation at the point of time when they were prepared, after
giving due considerations to the commercial and financial aspects of the
Demerged Undertaking and the industry in which the Company operates. But
such information and estimates are not offered as assurances that the particular
level of income or profit will be achieved or events will occur as predicted. Actual
results achieved during the period covered by the projected financial statements
may vary from those contained in the statement and the variation may be
material. The fact that |1 have considered the projections in this valuation
exercise should not be construed or taken as | being associated with or a party
to such projections.

The work does not constitute certification of the historical financial statements
including the working results of the Business Undertaking / Companies referred
to in this report. Accordingly, I am unable to and do not express an opinion on
the fairness or accuracy of any financial information referred to in this report.
This report is issued on the understanding that the Companies have drawn my
attention to all material information, which they are aware of concerning the
financial position of the Business Undertaking / Companies and any other
matter, which may have an impact on my opinion, on the recommendation of
the Share Entitlement Ratio of the Companies, including any significant changes
that have taken place or are likely to take place in the financial position,
subsequent to the report date. | have no responsibility to update this report for
events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.

This Report does not look into the business / commercial reasons behind the
proposed transaction or address any potential synergies to the Companies and
other parties connected thereto.

In the course of issuing this report, | was provided with both written and verbal
information. | have evaluated the information provided to me by the
management of the Companies through broad inquiry, analysis and review. |
assume no responsibility for any errors in the above information furnished by
the management of the Companies and consequential impact on the
recommendation of the Share Entitlement Ratio. | do not express any opinion
or offer any assurance regarding accuracy or completeness of any information
made available to me.

The report is not, nor should it be construed as me opining or certifying any

compliance with the provisions of any law, whether in India or any other country
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6.9.

6.10.

6.11.

6.12.

6.13.

including companies, taxation and capital market related laws or as regards any
legal implications or issues arising from any transaction proposed to be
contemplated based on this Report.

The information contained herein and my report is confidential. Any
person/party intending to provide finance/invest in the shares/businesses of the
Companies, shall do so, after seeking their own professional advice and after
carrying out their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are making
an informed decision. It is to be noted that any reproduction, copying or
otherwise quoting of this report or any part thereof, can be done only with prior
permission in writing.

This report has been prepared solely for the purpose of assisting the Companies,
under consideration, for the purpose of recommending the fair Share
Entitlement Ratio under the Scheme in accordance with my engagement letter.
Further, the fees for this engagement is not contingent upon the
recommendation considering the facts and purpose of recommendation.

The decision to carry out the transaction (including consideration thereof) lies
entirely with the Management / Board of Directors of the Companies and my
work and finding shall not constitute recommendation as to whether or not the
Management / the Board of Directors of the respective Companies should carry
out the transaction.

By its very nature, valuation work cannot be regarded as an exact science, the
conclusions arrived at in many cases will of necessity be subjective and
dependent on the exercise of individual judgement. Given the same set of facts
and using the same assumptions / approach, opinions may differ due to
application of the facts and assumptions / approach, formulas used and
numerous other factors. There is, therefore, no indisputable single or standard
methodology / approach for arriving at the recommendation. Although my
conclusions are in my opinion reasonable, it is quite possible that others may
not agree.

CA Harsh Chandrakant Ruparelia, nor its employees or agents or any of them,
makes any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy,
reasonableness or completeness of the information, based on which the report
is issued. All such parties expressly disclaim any and all liability for, or based
on or relating to any such information contained in the report. I am not liable
to any third party in relation to issue of this report. In no event, | shall be liable
for any loss, damage, cost or expense arising in any way from any acts carried

out by the Companies referred herein or any person connected thereto.
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If you require any clarifications on the above, | would be happy to clarify the same. |

am thankful to your team for kind co-operation and support during this assignment.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,
HARSH C (e

RU PARELIA Date: 2022.12.20

11:56:12 +05'30'

CA HARSH CHANDRAKANT RUPARELIA
REGISTERED VALUER — Securities or Financial Assets
IBBI Registration No. IBBI/RV/05/2019/11106
Membership No. ICMAI RVO/S&FA/00054

ICAlI Membership No. 160171

Date: 20" December 2022

Place: Mumbai

UDIN: 22160171BFTFFY9096
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Annexure A

INR in Crores
Particulars 10022051 | 310324 | 310325 | 310326 | 310327 v
PBT 0.80 0.05 0.70 1.60 3.11 3.27
Less: Tax - - - - - 0.82
PAT 0.80 0.05 0.70 1.60 3.11 2.45
Depreciation 0.06 0.07 0.08 0.09 0.09 0.10
Interest (net of tax) 0.00 0.77 0.85 1.09 1.37 1.08
Adjustments:
Adjustments for Working Capital -4.65 -4.66 -0.86 -2.67 -3.11 -0.76
Additions to Fixed Assets (Net) - -0.10 -0.10 -0.10 -0.10 -0.10
Net Inflows/(Outflows) -3.79 -3.87 0.67 0.01 1.36 2.76
Discounting Factor (WACC) 16% 0.95 0.83 0.72 0.62 0.53
Net Present Value of Inflows/(Outflows) -3.59 -3.22 0.48 0.00 0.72
Calculation for Perpetuity INR in Crores
FCFF for Perpetuity 2.76
Growth Rate 5%
Total Capitalised Value 25.10
Discount Factor 0.53
Present Value of Perpetuity 13.36
Equity Value of Company INR in Crores
Net Present Value of Explicit Period -5.59
Present Value of Perpetuity 13.36
FCFF 7.76
Add/(Less): Adjustments
Cash and bank balances 9.08
PV of brought forward losses 0.14
Equity Value for Shareholders 16.98
No. of Equity Shares 20,000,000
Value per Share (INR) 8.49
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Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited, a
company incorporated under the erstwhile

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,

House,

14,

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
COURT No. V, MUMBAI BENCH

Mumbai-

Pune Road,

C.A. (CAA) / 284 (MB) / 2022

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013

AND
In the matter of Section 230 to Section 232 read
with section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder;

AND
In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement
presented under Sections 230 to 232 read with
Section 66 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder for the demerger of the Cooling
Business (‘Demerged Undertaking’) of Thermax
Cooling Solutions Limited (“First Applicant
Company” or “Demerged Company”) having CIN
U29299PN2009PLC134761 into Thermax
Instrumenfation Limited (“Second Applicant
Company” or “Resulting Company”) having CIN
U72200MH1996PTC099050 (“Scheme”)

Wakdewadi, Pune - 411003, Maharashtra,

India.

CIN: U29299PN2009PLC134761

)
)
)
having its registered office at Thermax )
)
)
)--

. FIRST APPLICANT COMPANY /
DEMERGED COMPANY



C.A. (CAA) / 284 (MB) / 2022

Thermax Instrumentation Limited, a
company incorporated under the erstwhile

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,

House, 14, Mumbai- Pune Road,

)
)
)
having its registered office at Thermax )
)
Wakdewadi, Pune - 411003, Maharashtra, )
)--

India. . SECOND APPLICANT
CIN: U72200MH1996PTC099050 COMPANY / RESULTING
COMPANY

(First Applicant Company and the Second Applicant Company together referred to

as “Applicaint Companies”).
Order delivered on: 06.01.2023

Coram: Hon’ble Shri Kuldip Kumar Kareer, Member (Judicial)
Hon’ble Smt. Anuradha Bhatia, Member (Technical)

Appearances (via videoconferencing):
For Applicant Companies: CA Harsh C. Ruparelia, i/b A R C H and Associates,

Authorised Representatives for the Applicant Companies

ORDER

1. The Court convened through videoconference.

2. The Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies submits that
the present scheme is a Scheme of Arrangement between Thermax Cooling
Solutions Limited (“First Applicant Company” or “Demerged Company”)
and Thermax Instrumentation Limited (“Second Applicant Company” or
“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders under Section
230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder (“Scheme?”).
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. The Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies submits that
the First Applicant Company is engaged in the business of providing various
wet and dry cooling solutions for removal of heat from different processes in
manufacturing industries. The First Applicant Company is also providing
cooling solutions and providing air cooling condensers to power projects of
Thermax India and external customefs for power and energy business.
Further, it is also engaged in the business of supply of equipment for power
plant such as Electrostatic Precipitators ( for plant sizes more than 300 MW)
and Regenerative Air Preheaters ( for plant sizes more than 300 MW).

. The Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies submits that
the Second Applicant Company is rendering erection, commissioning, civil
works and operation and maintenance services for turnkey contracts for

power plants.

. The Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies submits that
the Applicant Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of the same
shareholder i.e., Thermax Limited. The business activities carried out by the
First Applicant Company as a part of its Cooling Business and by The
Second Applicant Company are complementary in nature and provide
vertical integration for completion of power projects. The Board of Directors
of the First Applicant Company and the Second Applicant Company are of
the opinion that the Demerger of Cooling Business under this Scheme would
result in benefit to members, creditors and employees of each of the First
Applicant Company and the Second Applicant Company, will not be
detrimental to the public and would result in expansion of Cooling Business
attached with the increase in the value for its members in long run. The
demerger, transfer and vesting of the Cooling Business of the First Applicant
Company on a going concern basis to the Second Applicant Company will
result in the following benefits for the group as whole:

a) Vertical integration of operations for Second Applicant Company
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Company post the proposed Demerger due to complementary business
being consolidated under the same entity resulting in scalability and
operative effectiveness

c) | Elimination of duplication of administrative and compliance functions

resulting in cost saving

6. The Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies furfher submits
that, in consideration of transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
of the First Applicant Company in the Second Applicant Company pursuant
to this Scheme, the Second Applicant Company shall, without any further
application, act, instrument or deed, issue and allot Redeemable Preference
Shares in the Second Applicant Company credited as fully paid-up, to all
the equity shareholder(s) of the First Applicant Company whose name is
appear in the register of members of the First Applicant Company on the
Record Date or to their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other
legal representatives or the successors-in-title as the case may be, in the
following manner:

“85 (Eighty-Five) 10% Redeemable Preference Shares of the Second Applicant
Company of INR 100 each credited as fully paid up for every 1,000 (One
Thousand) equity shares held in the First Applicant Company of INR 10* each

fully paid up.”

*On Part B of the Scheme (reorganization of share capital and reduction of
paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company) becoming effective as
provided in the Scheme, INR 10 to be read as INR 5.

7. The Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies submits that
the Board of Directors of the First Applicant Company and the Second
Applicant Company vide their resolution dated 20%* December 2022
approved the Scheme of Arrangement between Thermax Cooling Solutions
Limited and Thermax Instrumentation Limited and their respecﬁve

shareholders. The Appointed Date for the purpose of the Scheme m

April 2023 or such other date as may be fixed or approved by
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relation to the Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged
Company.

The Authorized Representative for the First Applicant Company further
submits that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with
Section 66 of the Act and upon the Scheme coming into effect, the issued,
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the First Applicant Company shall
stand reduced from INR 20,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Crores Only) divided
into 2,00,00,000 (Two Crores Only) equity shares with face value of INR 10
(Rupees Ten Only) per equity share to INR 10,00,00,000 (Rupees Ten Crores
Only) divided into 2,00,00,000 (Two Crores Only) equity shares with face
value of INR 5 (Rupees Five Only) per equity share without any payment or
consideration to the shareholders of the First Applicant Company for
effecting such reduction in face value and paid-up value per equity share,

without any further act or deed as per Para 6 of the Scheme.

That there are 7 (Seven) Equity Shareholders in First Applicant Company
and that the First Applicant Company having procured the consent affidavit
from 6 (Six) Equity Shareholder holding 99.9999% of the total shareholding
of the First Applicant Company which are annexed to the Company Scheme
Application. The First Applicant Company undertakes to submit consent
affidavit of the one shareholder representing 0.0001% shareholding at the
time of filing of Company Scheme Petition. The undertaking is accepted.
Therefore, the meeting of equity shareholders of the First Applicant
Company is hereby dispensed with.

That there are 7 (Seven) Equity Shareholders in the Second Applicant
Company and that the Second Applicant Company having procured the
consent affidavits from all the Equity Shareholders which are annexed to

the Company Scheme Application.

In view of the fact that the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Cog

o

have given their consent affidavits, the meetings of the Equity Shardjolders
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of the Applicant Companies are hereby dispensed with.

The Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies submits that
as on 30t November 2022, there are no Secured Creditors in the First
Applicant Company and the Second Applicant Company, Therefore, the
question of holding the meeting or sending notices to the Secured Creditors
of the First Applicant Company and Second Applicant Company does not

arise.

The Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies submits that
as on 30t November 2022, there are 70 (Seventy) Unsecured Creditors in
the First Applicant Company amounting to INR 3,45,93,808/- (Rupees
Three Crores Forty Five Lakhs Ninety Three Thousand Eight Hundred and
Eight), and 315 (Three Hundred and Fifteen) Unsecured Creditors for the
Second Applicant Company amounting to INR 23,82,87,833/- (Rupees
Twenty-Three Crores Eighty-Two Lakhs Eighty Seven Thousand Eight
Hundred and Thirty Three Only).

This Bench directs conduct of meetings of Unsecured Creditors of the First
Applicant Company and Second Applicant Company as on 30t November
2022 as follows:

a) That the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the First Applicant
Company be convened and held on 14th March 2023 at 2.30 pm
through video conferencing or other audio-visual means for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without
modification(s) the proposed Scheme. The Unsecured Creditors of the
First Applicant Company will be able to cast their vote in the meeting
either in person or through proxy to the adoption of proposed Scheme.

b) That the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Second Applicant
Company be convened and held on 14t March 2023 at 4.30 pm
through video conferencing or other audio-visual means for the

purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or wi
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modification(s) the proposed Scheme. The Unsecured Creditors of the
Second Applicant Company will be able to cast their vote in the
meeting either in person or through proxy to the adoption of proposed

Scheme.

That at least 30 clear days before the said meetings of the Unsecured
Creditors of the First Applicant Company and the Second Applicant
Company be held as aforesaid, a notice in the prescribed form CAA.2,
convening the said meeting at the place, day, date and time as
aforesaid, togeﬂler with a copy of the Scheme, a copy of a statement
disclosing all material facts as required under Section 230(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rule, 2016 shall
be sent by courier / R.P.A.D / hand delivery and e-mail to each of the
Unsecured Creditors at their registered address / registered email-
address as per the records of the respective Applicant Company. And
in case the e-mail ids are not available, by way of registered post
acknowledge due enclosing a copy of the Scheme, with instructions
that they may submit their representations, if any, to the Tribunal
within a period of 30 days from the date of receipt of such notice, and
copy of such representations shall simultaneously be served upon the

Applicant Companies.

That at least 30 clear days.before the said meetings of the Unsecured
Creditors of First and Second Applicant Company to be held as
aforesaid, an advertisement in prescribed Form No. CAA.2 as per Rule
7 of the Companies (Compromises, .Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, convening the said meetings indicating
the place, day, date and time as aforesaid, stating that copies of the
Scheme and the statement required to be furnished pursuant to
Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the

Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Ry
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2016 copy of the Scheme can be obtained free of charge the Applicant
Companies as aforesaid, be published once each in ‘Business
Standard’ in English language and the translation thereof in
‘Navshakti’ in Marathi language both be circulated in Pune.

That Mr. Ajit Sharma, failing him Mr. Prashant Bhosale, shall be the
Chairman, for the above-mentioned meetings of the Unsecured
Creditors of First and Second Applicant Company to be held as

aforesaid or any adjournments thereof.

That the Chairman to file an affidavit not less than 7 days before the
date fixed for the holding of the meeting of the First Applicant
Company and the Second Applicant Company and to report this
Tribunal that the direction regarding the issue of notices and
advertisement have been duly complied with as per Rule 12 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,

2016.

The Chairman appointed for the aforesaid meeting of the First
Applicant Company and the Second Applicant Company to issue the
notices of the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors referred to above.
The said Chairman shall have all powers under the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in
relation to the conduct of the meeting(s), including for deciding
procedural questions that may arise or at any adjournment thereof or
any other matter including an amendment to the Scheme or

resolution, if any, proposed at the meeting by any person(s).
That the quorum of the aforesaid meeting of the unsecured creditors

of First and Second Applicant Company shall be 5 unsecured

Creditors (in number) present in person or through proxy or as
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representative. The voting by proxy or authorised representative in
case of body corporate shall be permitted provided that proxy or
authorization duly signed by the person entitled to attend and vote at
the meeting, is filed with the respective Applicant Companies, as
applicable at its respective Registered Offices not later than, 48 hours
before the aforesaid meeting as required under Rule 10 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,
2016.

The value and number of the Unsecured Creditors of the respective
Applicant Companies, shall be in accordance with the books/ records
maintained by the respective Applicant Companies and where the
entries in the books/ records are disputed, the Chairperson of the
meeting shall determine the value and number for the purpose of the
aforesaid meeting and his decision in that behalf would be final.

That the Chairman to report to this Tribunal, the result of the
aforesaid meetings within 30 days of the conclusion of the meetings of
First Applicant Company and Second Applicant Company The
Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies further
clarifies that the Applicant Companies will file petition and comply
with the provision of service of notices upon all the regulatory

authorities.

That the scrutinizer for the aforesaid meetings of First Applicant
Company and Second Applicant Company shall be Mr. Surendra Vyas,
Practicing Company Secretary (M. No. 9668 and C.P. No. 21404) with

remuneration fixed at Rs. 10,000/- for each meeting.

15.The First Applicant Company is directed to serve notices of present

Application along with its enclosures- upon:- (i) concerned Income Tax
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Tax Officer, (ii) the Central Government through the office of Regional
Director, Western Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Mumbai, (iii)
concerned Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Pune and (iv) concerned
GST Authority within whose jurisdiction the First Applicant Company is
assessed to tax, pursuant to section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 with a direction that they may, if they so wish,
submit their representations, if any, within aperiod of thirty days (30) from
the date of receipt of such notice to the Tribunal with copy of such
representations shall simultaneously be served upon the First Applicant
Company failing which, it shall be presumed that the authorities have no

representations to make on the proposed Scheme.

16. The Second Applicant Company is directed to serve notices of present
Application along with its enclosures upon:- (i) concerned Income Tax
Authority within whose jurisdiction the Second Applicant Company is
assessed to tax, bearing PAN No. AACCT1032C to the jurisdictional Income
Tax Officer; (ii) the Central Government vthrough the office of Regional
Director, Western Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Mumbai, (iii)
concerned Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Pune and (iv) concerned
GST Authority within whose jurisdiction the Second Applicant Company is
assessed to tai, pursuant to section 230(5) of the Comparﬁes Act, 2013 and
as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 with a direction that they may, if they so wish,
submit their representations, if any, within a period of thirty days (30) from
the date of receipt of such notice to the Tribunal with copy of such
representations shall simultaneously be served upon the Second Applicant
Company failing which, it shall be presumed that the authorities have no

representations to make on the proposed Scheme.

17. The Authorized Representative for the Applicant Companies further clarifi

of service of notices upon all the regulatory authorities.
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18. That the Applicant Companies to file an Affidavit of Service of the directions
given by the Tribunal in the Registry for service of notice to the regulatory -
authorities as stated above and do report to this Tribunal that the directions
regarding the issue of notices have been duly complied with. The Applicant
Companies are also directed to include in the affidavit of service of proof of
dispatch of documents sent to unsecured creditors of the Applicant

Companies, wherever applicable or as directed hereinabove.

19. Ordered accordingly.

Sd/- Sd/-
Anuradha Sanjay Bhatia Kuldip Kumar Kareer
Member (Technical) Member (Judicial)

Certiﬁed'fme(;-opsg
Copy Issued “free of co
onvlil lo1 /29_2_3—-

ﬁmx /7”/z°

National Company Law Tribunat Mumbai Besich
(- 032) (3 (ot l2e23
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Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2022

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

. As at As at
Particulars Note No. Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Assets
L. Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4(a) 1.68 1.71
Intangible assets 4(b) 6.65 12.76
Financial assets:

(a) Other assets 5 (a) 1.56 1.56
Income tax assets (net) - 18.09
Other assets 6 (a) 1.73 1.73
Total non-current assets 11.62 35.85
II. Current assets
Inventories 7 0.28 24471
Financial assets:
(a) Trade receivables 8 952.55 772.98
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 9 (a) 6.08 79.28
(c) Bank balances other than (b) above 9 (b) 901.64 1,058.81
Other assets 6 (b) 33.82 88.13
Total current assets 1,930.88 2,243.91
Total assets 1,942.50 2,279.76
1I1. Equity and liabilities
Equity share capital 10 2,000.00 2,000.00
Other equity 11 (1121.07) (1347.07)
Total equity 878.93 652.93
IV. Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Trade payables 13
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 43.93 248.90
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprise: 476.49 356.96
(b) Other liabilities 14 107.69 65.71
Provisions 15 75.62 133.04
Other liabilities 16 348.12 822.22
Income tax liabilities (net’ 11.72 -
Total current liabilities 1,063.57 1,626.83
Total equity and liabilities 1,942.50 2,279.76




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the period ended September 30, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

. Period ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. Sept 30,2022 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 17 1,794.33 1,875.82
Other income 18 20.13 55.90
Total Income (I) 1,814.46 1,931.72
Expenses
Projects bought outs and components consumec 19 1,019.05 1,501.80
(Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 20 24471 (203.04)
Employee benefits expense 21 138.58 282.17
Finance cost 22 - 2.75
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 6.14 13.34
Other Expenses 24 (a) 174.91 173.26
Total expenses (II) 1,583.39 1,770.28
Profit before tax (IIT) = (I-IT) 231.07 161.44
Tax expense 25
Current tax 5.07 1143
Deferred tax - -
Total tax expense (IV) 5.07 11.43
Profit for the year (V) = (Il - IV) 226.00 150.01
Other comprehensive income (OCI)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 26 - 14.90
Total other comprehensive income for the year (VI) - 14.90
Total comprehensive income for the year (VII) = (V) + (VI) 226.00 164.91
Earning per equity share (Basic and Diluted) [Nominal value per share Rs.10/- (March 27 113 075

31,2022: Rs 10/-)]



Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended September 30, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

A Equity Share Capital

Particulars June 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,000.00 2,000.00
Changes in equity shares capital during the year - -
Balance at the end of the period 2,000.00 2,000.00

B Other Equity”

Particulars

Reserves & Surplus

Retained Earnings

As at March 31, 2021 (1,511.98)
Profit for the year 150.01
Other Comprehensive Income 14.90
Total comprehensive income 164.91
As at March 31, 2022 (1,347.07)
Profit for the period 226.00
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total comprehensive income 226.00

As at Sept 30, 2022

(1,121.07)




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended September 30, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise’

. Note No. Period ended Year ended
Particulars
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
A) Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 231.07 161.44
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 6.14 13.34
Liabilities no longer required written back 18 - (5.93)
Fair value gain on financial instrument at fair value through profit & loss 18 - -
Interest Expense 22 - 2.75
Interest income 18 (20.13) (45.43)
Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment - -
Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (179.57) 649.97
(Increase) in Inventories 244.43 (33.60)
Decrease in other financial assets (36.51) 0.07
Decrease in other assets 54.31 18.38
(Decrease) in trade payables (85.44) (495.19)
(Decrease) / Increase in other financial liabilities 41.98 (96.96)
(Decrease) / Increase in provisions (57.42) (3.64)
(Decrease) in other liabilities (474.10) (142.72)
Net Cash generated from operations (A) (275.24) 22.48
Direct taxes (paid) (net) 24.74 (10.65)
Net cash flow from operating activities (250.50) 11.83
B) Cash flows from investing activities
(Purchase) of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets - (0.04)
Proceeds from sale of Investments - -
Interest/dividend received 20.13 45.43
Proceeds from bank deposits 157.17 29.78
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) 177.30 75.17
C) Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayment) of short term borrowings - (8.79)
Interest paid - (2.75)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities (C) - (11.54)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (73.20) 75.46
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 79.28 3.82
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 6.08 79.28
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement:
Note No. Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 9 (a) 6.08 79.28
Balances as per cash flow statement 6.08 79.28




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

4 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment

4 (b)

Office

Furniture

Plant &

Particulars Computer Equipment | & Fixtures | Machinery Vehicles Total
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2021 11.32 0.21 0.02 1.31 - 12.86
Additions 0.04 - - - - 0.04
Disposals - - - - - -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 11.36 0.21 0.02 1.31 - 12.90
Additions - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - -
Gross carrying amount as at Sept 30, 2022 11.36 0.21 0.02 1.31 - 12.90
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2021 9.81 0.09 - 1.22 - 11.12
Charge for the year 0.02 0.05 - - - 0.07
Disposals - - - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2022 9.83 0.14 - 1.22 - 11.19
Charge for the year 0.03 - - - - 0.03
Disposals - - - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at Sept 30, 2022 9.86 0.14 - 1.22 - 11.22
Net block September 30, 2022 1.50 0.07 0.02 0.09 - 1.68
Net block March 31, 2022 1.53 0.07 0.02 0.09 - 1.71
Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Total

Software

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2021 42.91 42.91
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 42.91 42.91
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Gross carrying amount as at Sept 30, 2022 4291 42.91
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2021 16.88 16.88
Charge for the year 13.27 13.27
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022 30.15 30.15
Charge for the year 6.11 6.11
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated amortisation as at Sept 30, 2022 36.26 36.26
Net block September 30, 2022 6.65 6.65
Net block March 31, 2022 12.76 12.76

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

5 Financial assets
(a) Other non current assets
As at As at
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Security deposits 1.56 1.56
Total 1.56 1.56
6 Other assets
(a) Other non-current assets
As at As at

(b)

Sept 30, 2022

March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Balances with government authorities 1.73

1.73

Total 1.73

1.73

Other current assets

As at
Sept_30, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022

Unsecured considered good

Advance to supplier 24.25 79.83
Advances to employec 2.51 2.40
Prepaid expenses 7.06 5.90
Total 33.82 88.13

There were no advances due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them severally or jointly with any other persons or amounts due by firms or private

companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a member.

7 Inventories
As at As at
Sept_30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Raw Materials, components and bought-outs 0.28 -
Work-in-progress - -
Finished goods* - 244.71
Total 0.28 244.71

* includes goods in transit of Rs. Nil ( March 31, 2022 : Rs. 244.71)

(This space is intentionally left blank



Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

9 (a) _Cash and cash equivalents

As at
Sept 30, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022

At amortized cost
Balances with banks
- _in current accounts

6.08

79.28

Total

6.08

79.28

9 (b) _Other bank balances

As at
Sept 30, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022

At amortized cost
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 month

901.64 1,058.81
Total 901.64 1,058.81
10 _Share capital
As at As at

Sept 30, 2022

March 31, 2022

Authorized shares (Nos)

50,000,000 (March 31, 2022 : 50,000,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10 /- each. 5,000.00 5,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid share capital (Nos)

20,000,000 (March 31, 2022 : 20,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 /- each. 2,000.00 2,000.00

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 2,000.00 2,000.00

(a) Reconciliation of the shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the year

No. of shares

Equity share of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At April 1, 2021

2,00,00,000
Changes during the year -
At March 31, 2022 2,00,00,000
Changes during the year -
At September 30, 2022 2,00,00,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(¢) Equity shares held by ultimate holding / holdi

As at
Sept 30, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022

Holding company
Thermax Limitec
20,000,000 (March 31, 2022: 20,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

2,000.00

2,000.00

etails of equity shares held by shareholders more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
d) Details of equity sh: held by shareholders holdi han 5% of th h. in the C

As at
Sept 30, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022

Thermax Limited
Y%
No. of shares

100.00
2,00,00,000

100.00
2,00,00,000

11 _Other equity

As at
Sept 30, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022

Reserves and surplus
Retained earnings

Opening balance (1,347.07) (1,511.98)

Add: Profit for the period 226.00 150.01

Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings:

Re-measurements (loss) of post-employment benefit obligations, - 14.90

Net (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss (1,121.07) (1,347.07)
Total (1,121.07) (1,347.07)




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

14 _Other fi ial liabilities
As at As at
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative not designated as hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts 41.10 7.50
At amortised cost
Employee related payables 34.54 26.16
Other Payables to group compan 32.05 32.05
Total 107.69 65.71
15 _Current provisions
As at As at
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 29 (a)) 2525 2443
Provision for leave encashmen 19.68 18.98
44.93 43.41
Other provisions
Provision for onerous contracts 1.65 34.09
Provision for warranties 29.04 55.54
30.69 89.63
Total 75.62 133.04
16 _Other liabilities
As at As at
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Unearned revenue (Contract liabilities 130.83 449.59
Customer advance (Contract liabilities’
(i) Related parties (refer note 30(e)) 189.74 168.84
(i) Others 24.92 190.13
Statutory dues and other liabilities* 2.63 13.66
Total 348.12 822.22

*includes GST, tax deducted at source, professional tax, provident fund etc
For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 30.

(This space is intentionally left blank



Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

17 Revenue from operations

(a) Revenue from contracts with St
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Revenue from projects and products 1,857.40 1,889.05
1,857.40 1,889.05
(b) _Other operating income
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Export Incentive - 0.33
Exchange fluctuation (loss) / gain (net’ (63.07) (13.56)
Total (63.07) (13.23)
Total revenue from operations 1,794.33 1,875.82
18 _Other income
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
Bank deposits 20.13 45.28
Others - 0.15
Liabilities no longer required written bacl - 5.93
Fair value gain on financial instrument at fair value through profit and los - -
Miscellaneous incom¢ - 4.54
Total 20.13 55.90
19 Projects bought outs and components consumed
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Inventories at the beginning of the yeai - 169.44
Projects bought outs and Components 1,019.32 1,332.36
1,019.32 1,501.80
Inventories at the end of the period (0.27) -
1,019.05 1,501.80
Less: Capitalised during the perioc - -
Total 1,019.05 1,501.80
20 _(Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work in progress
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Inventories at the beginning of the yeai
Work-in-progress - 26.25
Finished goods 244.71 15.42
244.71 41.67
Less: inventories at the end of the period
‘Work-in-progress - -
Finished goods - (244.71)
- (244.71)
Total 244.71 (203.04)
21 _Employee benefits expense
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Salaries,wages and bonus 126.82 231.08
Contribution to provident and other funds 8.76 22.17
Gratuity expense (refer note 29 (a)) 1.68 26.63
Staff welfare expenses 1.32 2.29
Total 138.58 282.17
22 _Finance cost
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Interest expense:
- Bank - 0.66
- Others - 2.09
Total - 2.75
23 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4(a)) 0.03 0.07
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4(b): 6.11 13.27
Total 6.14 13.34

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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24 (a) _Other expenses

Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Consumption of stores and spare parts (0.85) 223
Power and fuel - -
Freight and forwarding charges (net) 140.39 94.83
Site expenses and Contract labour charges 1.92 77.73
Drawing, design and technical service charge: - -
Advertisement and sales promotior - 0.01
Rent 2.07 3.74
Rates and taxes - 0.54
Insurance - 2.44
Repairs and maintenance : Others 4.02 12.19
Travelling and conveyancc 234 15.01
Legal and professional fees (includes payment to auditor, refer note 24(b) 5.00 16.88
Commission on Sales - 0.29
Provision for impairment allowance of financial asset (net 37.39 (44.29)
Warranty expenses (net) (26.50) (18.91)
Miscellaneous expenses (includes printing, communication, postage, security expense, etc.) 9.13 10.57
Total 174.91 173.26

25 Income Taxes
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022

Current Tax 5.07 11.43
Deferred Tax - -
Total 5.07 11.43

26 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

Retained Earnings

During the year ended Sept 30, 2022
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plan
Total

During the year ended March 31,2022

Re-measurement (losses) on defined benefit plan 14.90
Total 14.90
27 Earning per share
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Net profit attributable to the Equity shareholders of the Company 226.00 150.01
Weighted average number of Equity shares of Rs.10/- eacl 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Basic and Diluted Earning per sharc 1.13 0.75

28 Lease commitments
Operating lease: Company as lessee

The Company had taken office buildings on a short term cancellable operating lease from the Holding company. During the previous year, the management service
agreement was terminated and during current year the Company has entered into Rent agreement which includes office space from the Holding Company. The Company

has also taken guest house and other equipments on a short term cancellable operating lease. There were no sub-leases.

Future minimum lease rental payables under cancellable operating leases are as follow

Sept 30, 2022

March 31, 2022

Lease payments for the period

2.07

3.74

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Trade receivables

As at As at
Sept 30,2022 March 31, 2022

Trade Receivables from:

i) Related parties (refer note 30(e)) 501.89 140.53
ii) Others 450.66 632.45
Total 952.55 772.98
Break-up for security details:

Secured, considered good - -
Less: Impairment allowance - -
Total (A) - -
Unsecured, considered good 1,072.34 855.37
Less: Impairment allowance 119.79 (82.39)
Total (B) 952.55 772.98
Trade Receivables which have a significant increase in credit risk - -
Less: Impairment allowance - -
Total (C) - -
Trade Receivables - credit impaired - -
Less: Impairment allowance - -
Total (D) - -
Total (A) +(B) +(C) + (D) 952.55 772.98
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13 Trade payables

As at As at
Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 43.93 248.90
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
(i) Related parties (refer note 30(e)) 69.24 60.34
(ii) Others 407.25 296.62
Total 520.42 605.86




“Fhermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Palance Sheet as ar March 31, 2022

( Allamounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

n ! As at As at
Particulars Note No. Muarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASefy
I- Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 4(a) 171 1.74
[ntingible assets 4(b) 12.76 26.03
Financial assets:

(a) Other assets 3 (a) 1.56 126,63
| 12Come tax assets (net) 18.09 1887
Other assets 6(a) 173 1.96
T otal non-current assets 35.85 175.23
11. Current assets
Inventories 7 24471 211,11
Financial assets:
(a) Trade receivables 8 772.98 142295
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 9 (a) 79.28 3.82
() Bank balances other than (b) above 9 (b) 1.058.81 963,52
(d) Other assets 3{b) - 0.07
Other assets 6 (b) 88.13 106,28
Total current assets 2,243.91 2,707.75
Total assets 2,279.76 2,882.98
1L Equity and liabilities
Equity share capital 10 2,000.00 2,000.00
Other equity 1 (1347.07) (1511.98)
Total equity 652.93 488.02
1V. Current liabilities
Financial liabilities:
(a) Borrowings 2 - 879
{b) Trade payables 13
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 24890 30492
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 356.96 796.13
(c) Other liabilities 14 6571 162.67
Provisions 15 133.04 15158
Other liabilities 16 82222 970.87
Total current liabilities 1,626.83 2,394.96
Total equity and liabilities 2,279.76 2,882.98
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Chartered Accountants
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Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Particul Note N Year ended Year ended
rticurars e March 31. 2022 March 31. 2021

Income
Revenue from operations 17 1.875.82 6.260.62
Other income 18 5590 6820
Total income (I) 1,931.72 6,328.82
Expenses
Projects bought outs and components consumed 19 1,501 80 5.162.54
(Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 20 (203.04) (41.67)
Employee benefits expense 21 28217 676,28
Finance cost 22 275 4.18
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 1334 1178
Other Expenses 24 (a) 173.26 51099
Total expenses (I1) 1,770.28 6,324.10
Profit before tax (1I1) = (I-1I) 161.44 4.72
Tax expense 25
Current tax 1143 -
Defened tax - -
Total tax expense (IV) 11.43 -
Profit for the year (V)= (11l -1V) 150.01 4.72
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 26 14.90 (7.20)
Total other comprehensive income for the year (V1) 14.90 (7.20)
Total comprehensive income for the year (VII) = (V) +(VI) 164.91 (2.48)
Eamning per equity share (Basic and Diluted) [Nominal value per share Rs,10/- (March 31, 27 075 002
2021: Rs 10/-)] - -
Sumimary of significant accounting policies 2

Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumnptions
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For SRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Finn Registration N
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per Vaibhav Kumar Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 213935

Place: Pune
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Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

A Eqguity Share Capital®

Particulars Note No March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 10 2,000 00 2,000 16
Changes in equity shares capital during the year 10 - <
Balunce at the end of the vear 1o 2,000.00 2,000.00

B Other Equity”

Reserves & Surplus

Particulars
Retained Earnings

As at March 31, 2020 (1,509.50)
Profit for the year 4.72
Other Comprehensive Income (7.20)
Total comprehensive income (2.48)
Asat Mareh 31, 2021 (1.511.98)
Profit for the year 150.01
Otler Comprehensive Income 14.90

164.91

Toral comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2022 (1.347.07)
“There are no adjistments on account of prior period errors or dine to ¢hanges in accounting policics.

ForSRBC& COLLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
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Partner Director Director
Membership No. 213935 DIN: 06631816 DIN: 08446343
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Ravi Shewade Afit Sharma Kajal Kabra
Manager Chiuef Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date: May 12, 2022 Date: May 12, 2022




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
March 31. 2022 March 31,2021
A) Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 161.44 472
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 13.34 11.78
Liabilities no longer required written back 18 (5.93) (8.84)
Fair value gain on financial instrument at fair value through profit & loss 18 - (0.14)
[nterest Expense 22 2.75 418
Interest income 18 (45.43) (58.26)
Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment % (0.62)
Working capital adjustments
([ncrease) Decrease in trade receivables 649 97 (171.68)
(Increase) in [nventories (33.60) 2101
Decrease in other financial assets 007 6.88
Decrease in other assets 18.38 1,388.27
(Decrease) in trade payables (495.19) (620.06)
(Decrease) / Increase in other financial liabilities (96.96) 120.47
(Decrease}/ [ncrease in provisions (3.64) 1.90
(Decrease) in other liabilities (142.72) (457.36)
Net Cash generated from operations (A) 22.48 10.13
Direct taxes (paid) (net) (10.65) (7.80)
Net cash flow from operating activities 11.83 2.33
B) Cash flows from investing activities
(Purchase) of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (0.04) (6.20)
Proceeds from sale of Investments - 4.49
Interest/dividend received 4543 5826
Proceeds from bank deposits 29.78 13.91
et eash Now from investing activitics (B) 75.17 Ti.46
C) Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayment) of short term borrowings (8.79) (182.36)
literast paid (2.75) (4.18)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities (C) (11.54) (186.54)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 75.46 (113.75)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 382 117.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 79.28 3.82
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow stateinent:
Note No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 9(a) 79.28 3.82
79.28 3.82

Balances as per cash flow statement

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration No

\stw@““
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Date: May 12, 2022
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Director
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Ravi Shewade

Ajit Sharma
Manager Chief Financial Officer
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Date: May 12, 2022
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Director
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Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

1. Corporate information
Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited (‘the Company') supplies Air Cooled Condensers [ACC] which are widely
used on turbine exhaust application with a view to reduce water consumption in power generation.

The Company’s portfolio also includes electrostatic precipitators (ESP), Bag Houses, Rotary Air Pre-Heaters
(RAPHs) and related services.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The address of its registered
office is Thermax House, 14, Mumbai — Pune Road, Wakdewadi, Pune - 411003, India. The Board of Directors
have authorized to issue these financial statements on May 12, 2022. The CIN of the Company is
U29299PN2009PLC134761.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1. Basis of preparation, measurement

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS),
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirement od Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) as applicable to the
financial statements.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, assumptions
and judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis under historical cost
convention except the following:
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);
e Defined benefit plans whereby the plan assets are measured at fair value.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

2.2.1 Consequent to amendments to the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 Security deposits (March
2021; Rs. 1.56 Lacs) have been presented as part of other non- current financial asset, which were previously
included under ‘loans’ in non- current financial assets.

2.2.2 Others
Several amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in the year ended March 31, 2022, but do not
have a material impact on financial statements of the Company.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An

asset is treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is dueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are prepared in Rupees, which is the also functional currency of the

Company.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

c. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data

are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

» Significant accounting policies for Financial instruments (Note no. 2.3 (h)

» Financial instruments and valuation techniques (Note no. 31 (a)

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

d. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is stated at cost of acquisition or construction net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All significant costs relating to the acquisition and installation of PPE
are capitalised. Subsequent costs/replacement costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of profit and loss
during the financial year in which they are incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/
part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different
from that of the remaining asset.

Depreciation on PPE is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives
estimated by the management. The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the
remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful lives of
certain classes of assets. The following useful lives are adopted by the management:

Company's |  Useful lifeas
Asset category estimate of useful prescribed under
life (years) | Schedule Il (years)
Plant and equipment S5to25 151020
Office equipment 15 15
Fumiture and fixtures 15 10
Computers and data processing units 3t06 3to6
Vehicles 7t0 10 8

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed on a regular basis and
changes in estimates, when relevant, are accounted for on a prospective basis.

e. Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits crgP\odied in the asset
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are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss

when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization rates applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Asset eategory Life (years)
Computer software 3to5

f. Inventories :

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value.
Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Finished goods and work in progress are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Write down of inventories are calculated based on
an analysis of foreseeable changes in demand, technology, market conditions and ageing of inventories.

g. Revenue recognition
i. Revenue from Contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognized when it has approval and commitment from both
the parties, the right of the parties is identified, the payment terms are identified the contract has commercial
substance and collectability of consideration is probable. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in
its revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit risk. The Company collects
goods and service tax on behalf of government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the
Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.
The Company has following steams of revenue:

e Revenue from Engineering, Procurement and Construction contracts
Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) contracts are contracts specifically negotiated for the
construction of an asset which refers to any project for construction of plants and systems, involving designing,
engineering, fabrication, supply, erection (or supervision thereof), commissioning, guaranteeing performance

thereof etc., execution of which is spread over different accounting periods. The Company identifies distinct
performance obligations in each contract. For most of the project contracts, the custom
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Company to provide a significant service of integrating a complex set of tasks and components into a single
project or capability. Hence, the entire contract is accounted for as one performance obligation.

The Company assesses for the timing of revenue recognition in case of each distinct performance obligation.
The Company first assesses whether the revenue can be recognized over a period of time if any of the following
criteria is met:
i.  The customer simultaneously consumes the benefits as the Company performs, or
ii.  The customer controls the work-in-progress, or
iil.  The Company’s performance does not create an asset with alternative use to the Company and the
Company has right to payment for performance completed till date

If none of the criteria above are met, the Company recognized revenue at a point-in-time. The point-in-time is
determined when the control of the goods or services is transferred which is determined based on when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the customer. Apart from this, the Company also
considers its present right to payment, the legal title to the goods, the physical possession and the customer
acceptance in determining the point in time where control has been transferred.

The Company recognizes revenue over time as it performs because of continuous transfer of control to the
customer. For all project contracts, this continuous transfer of control to the customer is supported by the fact
that the customer typically controls the work in process as evidenced either by contractual termination clauses or
by the rights of the Company to payment for work performed to date plus a reasonable profit to deliver products
or services that do not have an alternative use to the Company.

The Company uses cost-based measure of progress (or input method) for contracts because it best depicts the
transfer of control to the customer which occurs as it incurs costs on contracts. Under the cost-based measure of
progress, the extent of progress towards completion is measured based on the ratio of costs incurred to date to
the total estimated costs at completion of the performance obligation. Revenues, including estimated fees or
profits, are recorded proportionally as costs are incurred.

The Company estimates variable consideration amount which it expects to be entitled under the contract and
includes it in the transaction price to the extent it is highly probable that a significant reversal of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur and when the uncertainty associated with it is subsequently resolved. The
estimates of variable consideration and determination of whether to include estimated amounts in the transaction
price are based largely on an assessment of the anticipated performance and all information (historical, current
and forecasted) that is reasonably available.

Costs associated with bidding for contracts are charged to the Statement of profit and loss when they are
incurred. Costs that relate directly to a contract and are incurred in securing the contract are included as part of
the contract costs if they can be separately identified and measured reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be obtained.

Contract modification, when approved by both the parties to the contract, are considered as modification, if it
creates new or changes the existing enforceable rights and obligations. Most of the contract modifications are
not distinct from the existing contract due to the significant integration service provided under the contract prior
to modifications and are therefore, accounted for as part of the existing contract. The effect of a contract
modification is recognized as an adjustment to revenue on a cumulative catch-up basis.

When it becomes probable that the total contract costs will exceed the total contract revenue, the Company
recognizes the expected losses from onerous contract as an expense immediately. Penalties for any delay or
improper execution of a contract are recognized as a deduction from revenue. In the balance sheet, such
provisions are presented on net basis of the contract receivables.

On the balance sheet date, the Company reports the net contract position for each contract as either an asset or a
liability. A contract represents an asset where costs incurred plus recognized profits (less recognized losses)
exceed progress billings; a contract represents a liability where the opposite is the case.
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e  Revenue from Sale of goods

If the criteria for revenue under over-a-period of time as mentioned above are not met, the Company recognizes
revenue at a point-in-time. The point-in-time is determined when the control of the goods or services is
transferred which is generally determined based on when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the customer. Apart from this, the Company also considers its present right to payment, the legal
title to the goods, the physical possession and the customer acceptance in determining the point in time where
control has been transferred. The Company provides for warranty provision for general repairs up to 12 — 24
months on its products sold, in line with the industry practice. A liability is recognized at the time the product is
sold. The Company does not provide any extended warranties.

Contract balances

Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration and are transferred to Trade receivables on completion of milestones and its related
invoicing. Contract assets are recorded in balance sheet as unbilled revenue.

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Also
refer note 2.3(h) below.

Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company satisfies the performance obligation. Contract
liabilities are recorded in balance sheet as unearned revenue and Customer advances as the case may be.

ii. Interest Income
Interest income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable. Interest income is included in the other income in
the Statement of profit and loss.

iii. Dividend
Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.

h. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Profit and Loss, transactions costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

» Debt instruments at amortized cost

»  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

»  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance
costs/income in the Statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling

the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
Statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OClI is reclassified from the equity to the Statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
debt instrument is reported as interest income under EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI is classified as FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has not
designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the Statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103
applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
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P&L, even on the sale of the investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through"
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

[n accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss and credit risk exposure on the financial assets that are debt instruments at
amortised costs; e.g. loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

The Company follows simplified approach. The application of simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in
the Statement of profit and loss. ECL is presented as an allowance, i.c. as an integral part of the measurement of

those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These
gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to the Statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized
in the Statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value
through Statement of profit and loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the liabilities
are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires
when an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

i. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company's cash management.

j- Income tax
Current income-tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either
in OCl or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
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or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

k. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the Statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognized when the product is sold, or service provided to the
customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty related costs is
revised annually.

Provision for onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is
measured at the present value of the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is
established, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
» The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of profit
and loss:
» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
» Net interest expense or income

m. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The Company presents the basic and diluted EPS data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is computed by dividing
the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the net profit for the
year attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic EPS for the effects of all the equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had
the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (that is the average market value of the outstanding equity
shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the period, unless issued at
a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

3. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

3.1 Judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

i. Revenue from contracts with customers

A significant portion of the Company’s business relates to project contracts which is accounted using cost-based
input method, recognizing revenue as the performance on the contract progresses. This requires management to
make judgement with respect to identifying contracts for which revenue need to be recognised over a period of
time, depending upon when the customer consumes the benefit, when the control is passed to customer, whether
the asset created has an alternative use and whether the Company has right to payment for performance
completed till date, either contractually or legally. The input method requires management to make significant
Judgements of the extent of progress towards completion including accounting of multiple contracts which need
to be combined and considered as a single contract.

3.2 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from Corona virus Disease (COVID 19):

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carrying amounts of its assets such as investments, loans, receivables, unbilled revenues and inventories. In
developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because
of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statem
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external sources of information including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts and
consensus estimates from market sources on the expected future performance of the Company. The Company has
performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying
amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may
differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements.

i. ACC project contracts:

* Provisions for liquidated damages claims (LDs): The Company provides for LD claims to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will
not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. This
requires an estimate of the amount of LDs payable under a claim which involves a number of management
judgments and assumptions regarding the amounts to be recognized.

«  Project cost to complete estimates: At each reporting date, the Company is required to estimate costs to
complete on fixed-price contracts. Estimating costs to complete on such contracts requires the Company to
make estimates of future costs to be incurred, based on work to be performed beyond the reporting date.
This estimate will impact revenues, cost of sales, work-in-progress, billings in excess of costs, estimated
earnings and accrued contract expenses.

« Recognition of contract variations: The Company recognises revenues and margins from contract
variations where it is considered probable that they will be awarded by the customer and this requires
management to assess the likelihood of such an award being made by reference to customer
communications and other forms of documentary evidence

= Provision for onerous contracts: The Company provides for future losses on contracts where it is
considered highly probable that the contract costs are likely to exceed revenues in future years. Estimating
these future losses involves a number of assumptions about the achievement of contract performance
targets and the likely levels of future cost escalation over time.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs
of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length,
for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use
calculation is based on a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for
the next five years as approved by the Management and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of
the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well
as the expected future cash-inflows and the terminal growth rate used.

iii. Defined benefit plans - gratuity
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. The parameter which is most subjected to change is the discount rate. In determining the
appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The
mortality rate is based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are
based on expected future inflation rates.

iv. Fair value measurement of unquoted financial instruments
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When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of assumption is required in establishing fair values. Assumptions include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

v. Warranty provision

The Company generally offers warranty for its various products. Warranty costs are provided based on a
technical estimate of the costs required to be incurred for repairs, replacements, material costs, servicing cost
and past experience in respect of warranty costs. Management estimates the related provision for future
warranty claims based on historical warranty claim information, as well as recent trends that might suggest that
past cost information may differ from future claims. The assumptions made in current period are consistent
with those in the prior year. Factors that could impact the estimated claim information include the success of
the Company’s productivity and quality initiatives. Warranty provisions are discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate which reflects current market assessments of time value of money and risks specific to the
liability.

vi. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default, expected loss rates
and timing of cash flows. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine ECL impairment allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates a default rate of total revenue for trade receivables and
contract revenue for contract assets. The Company follows provisioning norms based on ageing of receivables
to estimate the impairment allowance under ECL. For retention receivables, the Company additionally
categorizes the receivables due from Public Sector Undertakings (PSUs) and Non-PSUs and follows a wider
aged bucket provisioning norms as the performance guarantee tests require certain time period after the
supplies are completed.

vii. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company determines, based on independent technical assessment, the estimated useful lives of its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets for calculating depreciation and amortisation. This estimate is
determined after considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the
residual value and useful lives annually and future depreciation and amortisation charge would be adjusted
where the management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

4 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Computer Eq(u)::;in ¢ Fu;&'::::s& Ml;l::itn‘:‘ry Vehicles Total
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2020 11.32 0.21 0.02 1.31 2.94 15.80
Additions - - - = - .
Disposals - - - - (2.94) (2.94)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 11.32 0.21 0.02 1.31 - 12.86
Additions 0.04 - = - - 0.04
Disposals . - - - - -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 11.36 0.21 0.02 1.31 - 12.90
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2020 9.01 0.09 - 1.22 2,71 13.03
Charge for the year 0.80 - = - # 0.80
Disposals - - - - (2.71) (2.71)
Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2021 9.81 0.09 - 1.22 - 11.12
Charge for the year 0.02 0.05 - . - 0.07
Disposals - - - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2022 9.83 0.14 - 1.22 - 1119
Net block March 31, 2022 1.53 0.07 0.02 0.09 - 1.71
Net block March 31, 2021 1.51 0.12 0.02 0.09 - 1.74

4 (b) Intangible assets
. Computer

Particulars Software Total
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2020 3586 3586
Additions 7.05 705
Disposals - -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 42.91 42.91
Additions = E
Disposals - -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 42.91 42.91
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2020 5.90 5.90
Charge for the year 10.98 10.98
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2021 16.88 16.88
Charge for the year 13.27 1327
Disposals . g
Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022 30.15 30.15
Net block March 31, 2022 12.76 12.76
Net block March 31, 2021 26.03 26.03

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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5 Financial assets
(a)_Other non current assets

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secunly deposils 156 156
Bank deposits with mafunix of more than 12 months - 125 07
Tatal 156 126,63
(b) _Other current assets
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
At amortized cost
Securiiy doposits - 007
Total - 0.07
6 Other assets
(ah Other non=current assels
As at Asat
NMarch 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, contidered zood
Balances with uoyemment authonties 173 1 96
Total 173 1.96
{b) Other current assets
As at As at
Mairch 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Unsecured considerced good
Advance (o supplier 7983 91 65
Advances to emplos ee 240 223
Prepaid expenses 590 1240
Total 88.13 106.28

There were no adyances due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them severally or jointly with any other persons or amounts due by [irms or privale
compantes respectively in which any director is a partner or 2 member

7 Inventaries

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Raw Malerials. components and bought-outs - 169 44
Work-in-progress - 2625
Finished uoods* 24471 1542
Total 24H.71 211.11

* includes goods in transit of Rs 244 71 ( March 31. 2021 Rs 15 42)

(This space s tnienuonally left blank)
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Trade reecivables

@*®

As at
March 31, 2022

Asal
Murch 31,2021

Trade Receivables from:

1) Related parties (refer note 30(e))
1t) Others

Total

Break-up for security details:
Secured. considered good
Less: Impairment allowance

140 53
632 45
772.98

587 67
835 28

1,422.95

Total (A) E =
Unsecured, considered good 85537 1,549 63
Less: lmpairment allowance (82.39) (126 68)
Total (B) 772.98 1,422.95
Trade Receivables which have a significant increase in credit risk - -
Less: Impairment allowance =
Total (C) - -
Trade Recetvables - credit impaired - -
Less [mpairment allowance % .
Total (D) = A
Total (A) +(B)+(C )+ (D) 772.98 1.422.95
The ageing of current trade receivables which are due for receipt:
Outstanding for the following period from due date ol payments Total
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 | 6 months- 1 More than 3
months vear 1-2 years 23 years years
As at March 31, 2022
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered good 72177 16 56 43 12 391 068 786.04
(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables- which have sigmficant increase i )
n credit risk
(ii1) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired - - E - 6933 69.33
(1v) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - - - - -
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables- which have sigmficant increase in B - 2 = y
credit nisk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- credit imparred - - - = - -
Subtotal 72177 16 56 4312 391 7001 855.37
Less: impaimment allowance {82.39
Total 721.77 16.56 43,12 3.91 - 70.01 772.98
O ding for the following period from due date of payments Total
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 6 months- 1 More than 3
months vear 12 years -3 years vears
As at March 31, 2021
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered good 61573 788 11 1313 6265 068 1,480.30
(11) Undisputed Trade Receivables- which have sigmificant increase ~ .
in credit nsk
(1i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired - - - - - 6933 69.33
(1v) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables- which have significant increase i ) )
credit risk
{v1) Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired B - - - - - -
Subtotal 61573 788 11 1313 6265 - 7001 1,549.63
Less: impairment allowance (126.68)
Total 615.73 788.11 13.13 62.65 - 70.01 1,422.95
There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
The following tuble summarises the change in impairment allowance measured using the life time expected eredit loss model =
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
At the beginning of the year 126 68 15492
Provisions made during the year 511 2497
Utilized/reversed during the vear 149.40) (3321)
At the end of the vear 82.39 IZ&é

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any of the trade receivable are due from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director 1s a partner, a director or a member

For terms and conditions relatiny to related party receivables, refer note 30

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days

(Thus space is intentionally left blank)




Thermax Cooling Solutiens Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per shave data and unless stated otherwise)

9 (a) _Cash and cash equivatonts

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

At amortized cost
Balances with banks

-_1n currenl accounls 7928 3382
Total 79.28 3.82
9 (b) Other bank balances
As at As at
March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021
At amortized cost
Deposits with orwmal maturiy of more than 3 rontls bul less than 12 menihs |LERH1 963 52
Total 1.058.51 96352
9 (¢} _Changes in liabilities arising from fi ing activities
Particulars Barrowings
As on April 1, 2020
Cash flow 879
Others -
Ax on March 31, 2021 (8.7
Cash llow 379
Others -
As on March 31. 2022 0441
10 _Share capital
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Authorized shares (Nos)
50.000.000 (March 31,2021 30.000.000 )} Equily Shares ol Rs 10 /- each 5.000 00 3.000 00
5,000.00 5,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid share capital (Nos)
20000 (00 { March 31,2021 260 WML Eguite Shares of Ri 10 < ench 2.000 00 2.000 00
000,00 2.000.00
o

(a) Reconcilintion of the shares fing ai the beginning and at the end of the year

No. of shares

Equity share of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Al Apnl 12020

Changes during the s ear

Al March 31, 2021

Changes during the y ear

At March 31, 2022

200K

2 LU

2,00.00,000

{b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class ol equity shares having a face value of Rs 10 per share Each shareholder is eligible for one vole per share held The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors 1s subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting [n the event of liguidation. the equity shareholders are

eligible 1o receive the remaining assets of the Company' afler distribution of all preferential amounts. in proportion to their shareholding

tc)_Equity shaves held by holding | halding

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31. 2021
Holding company
Thermax Limited 2001 LI 2ANHIIH)
20.000.000 (March 31. 2021 20.000.000) equily shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
(d) _Details of equity shares hetd by shareholders holding more than 5% of the agureguie shaves in the Company
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Thermax Limited
% 100 00 oo oo
No of shares 2.00.00.000 2.00.00.000
11 _Other equity
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Reserves and surplus
Retained earmings

Opening balance (1311 28] (1.309 30)
Add: Profit for the year 150080 472
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings:
Re-measurements (toss) of post-employ ment benefit obligations. 14 90 {720)
Net (deficit) in the statement ol profit and loss (1,347.07) (1,511.98)
Total (1.347.07) (1ST1.98)
—_—
12_Borrowings
As at As at
March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021
Bank overdrafl - 879
8.79

Total -

—_—
The bank overdrafi carries interest rate of MCLR (Marginal Cosl of Fund Based Lending Rate) 6 months and spread per annum (March 31. 2021: 7 80%). Thermax

Linuted (Holding company ) has given Corporate guarantee for securily against such Bank Oxerdrafi. 'For terms and conditions rely
note 30

P
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Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements (or the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

13 Trade payables

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Tolal outstanding dues of mucro and small enterprises 248 90 30492
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
{1) Relaled parties {refer note 3{e)) 60 34 168 86
(ii) Others 296 62 627 27
Total L0586 LADLOS

Far terms and conditians relaling 1o related party paxahles, refer note 3
Trade pay ables are non-inlerest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to Y0 days

Details of dues 1o micro nnd small enterprises as defined under the Miceo. Small and Mediuvm Enterprises Devel

lopment (MSMED) Act. 2006

Maveh 31,2022

March 31, 2021

| The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid Lo any supplier
as al the end ol each accounting \ ear

- Principal amount outstanding (whether due or not) to mucro and small enterprises 248 63 30299

- Interest due thereon 027 193
3 The amount of pay menl made Lo the supplier bes ond the appointed day during the 366 16 1.216.40
vear
4 The amount of interest due and pay able (or the period ol delay 1n making pay ment 182 912
{which have been paid bul bey ond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the inlerest specified under the MSMED Act. 2006
5 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpatd al the end of each accounting 219 1105
vear
6 The amount of further interest remaining due and pay able even in the succeeding s 533
vears. until such dale when the interest dues as abose are aclually paid (o the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expendilure under section 23
of the MSMED Act 2006
The agring of current trade payubles which are due for payment :

Outstunding for the following period from due date of payments Total
Particulars Not Due
Less than a year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2022
(i) MSME 171 67 19 80 g 344 127 197.36
(i) Others 246 16 2440 205 844 284 283.89
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
{1ii) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -
Subtotal 417.83 4+4.20 3.23 11.88 4.11 481.25
Unbilled trade payable* 124.61
Total 605.86
Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments Total
Particulars Not Due
Less than a year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

As at March 31, 2021
(i) MSME 274 21 23359 344 368 = 304.92
(i1} Others 331 61168 4180 180 - 688.47
(iit) Disputed dues- MSME . - - . - -
(iii) Disputed dues- Others - - - -
Subtotal 307.40 635.27 45.24 548 - 99339
Unbilled trade payable* 107.66
Total 1.101.05

*lncludes vear-end acenials

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(ANl amounts are in Rupees Lakh, cxcept per shave data and unless stated otherwise)

14 _Other (inancial liabilities

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Derivitive instruments at fiuir value through profit or loss
Deris altve not designaled as hedges

Foreign exchange lorward contracts 750 096
At amortised cost
Emplos ee relaled pay ables 26 16 1271
Onber Pavatdes 10 sroup company 3105 149 110l
Total 65,71 162.67
15 _Current provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer nole 29 (a)) 2443 15 1u
Provision for leaye encashment 18 98 3461
43.41 69.71
Other provisions
Provision for onerous conlracls 3409 671
Provision for warranties 5554 310
89.63 8187
Toial 13304 151.58

Provision for warranties

Warranly cosls are provided based on a technical estimate of the costs required to be incurred for repairs. replacements. maleral cosls. servicing cost and pasl experience
in respecl of such costs 1t 1s expected that this expendilure will be incurred over the contracted warranly period ranging uplo 2 vears H warranty claim cosis vany by 10%
from managemenl's estimate. the warranly proisions would be an estimaled Rs 3 55 higher or lower {(March 31, 2021 Rs 7 52)

Provision for onerons conirucis

A provision for expected loss on construction contracts is recognised when it is probable that the contracls costs will exceed lotal contract revenue For all other
conlracts. provision is made when the unavoidable costs of meeting Lhe obligation under the contract exceed the estimated economic benefits The timing of cash
outllows m respect of such provision is over the contract period

Movement in provisions

Provision for Provision for
onerous contracts warranties
Asat April 1,2021
Balance at the beginning 671 7516
Addilional provision recogmsed 3550 2239
Ulilised/ Reersed 82 420
As at March 31, 2122 34.09 55.54
Currenl 3409 3554
Non-Current - -
Total 34.09 55.54
16 _Other liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Uneamed res enue (Contract liabilities) 44959 773 68
Customer ads ance (Contract liabilities)
(1) Relaled parties (refer note 30(e)) 168 84 128 89
(ii) Others 19013 3402
Statutons dues and other l1abilities* 13 66 3428
Total 822.22 970.87

*includes GST. lax deducted al source. professional (ax. provident fund etc
For terms and conditions with related parties. refer note 30

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise}

17 Revenue (rom operations

{a) Revenue fIrom contracts with S3
Muoveh 31, 2022 March 5. 2021
Raesenue from projects and prodoets 18R (15 i 28R 4
188005 628846
(b) _Other operating inconie
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Export incenlive 033 -
Exchanye Muctuinen (Joss) main G (13 36) (27 84)
Total (13.23) (27.84)
—_—
Total revenue from aperations 187582 0.2601.62
Snor
(c) Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
i} Revenue by category of contricts:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ozver a penod of Lime basis 1.570 85 5.63175
Al pomi-m-fre basiy 31520 63671
Total vevenue from conlyacts with customers 188905 H,288.406
Revenue by seegraphical market:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within India 1.867 85 627532
Ohutside Indin 21 20 13 14
Total vevenue from contiacts with customers 1.B8Y.05 6.2585.46
Ohiher operating income 11323} |27 841
Total revenue from pperations 1,875.82 6,260.62
ii) Contract balances
The [ollowiny table prosides information about contract bal from contracls with cu: s as al he reporting date:
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade receiv ables (refer note 8) 77298 142295
Uneamed reyenue (Contract habilities) (refer nole 16) 449 59 773 68
Customer ady ances (Contract liabilities) (refer note 16) 358 97 16291

Conlract assels primarily relate to the Company ‘s rights o consideration lor work completed bul not billed al the reporting date [rom projecls and customused contracts
The Conlracl assels are (ransferred to trade recets ables on completion of milestones and its relaled im\oicing

The contract habilities relale (o uneamed rex enue and customer advances where performance obligations are yel to be (ulfilled as per the contracts. The fulfilment of the
per(ormance obligalions will extinguish (hese liabililies and rexenue will be recognised. with no impact on the Compans “s cash positions on specific projects

iii) Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contraci liability balance at the beginning of the period

Uneamed res enue 473 36 55097
Customer ady ance 7412 647 83
iv) Changes in unbilled revenue and unearned revenue for the year
The explanaton of the syemlicant chanes i the contract asset and the contracl labiliy balunces durnme the reporting penod is.pi | in the table helow
Murch 31, 2022 Murch 31,2021

Opening unbilled revenue (refer note 6) - 590
Opening unearned revenue (refer note 16 ) 773 68 381.62
(773.68) (575.72)

- Transfer of contract assels lo receiable from opening unbilled revenue . 214
- Increase in reyenue as a result of changes in the measure ol progress rom Lhe opening uneaed rey enue 473 36 55097
= Transfer of contract assets lo recen able (1.274 14 (5.81843)
- Increase in res enue as a resull of changes in the measure of progress 1.097 49 5.080 78
- Others* 2738 (9 14)
324.09 (197.96)

Closing unbilled revenue (refer note 6) - -
Closing unearned revenue (refer note 16) 449 59 773.68
(449.59) (773.68)

* includes adjustmenis on account of onerous conltracts. impairment allowance for the year etc

v) Performance obligations
There are no major contracts with customers which have significant financing component included within them and therefore there 1s no difference between the iming of
satisfaction of performance obligation vis a vis the uming of the pay ment

vi) Remaining performance obligations
The lollowing table includes revenue axpected to be recognised in the future related o performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or parlially unsausfied) at the
reporting date

The Company applies practical expedient included in para 121 of Ind AS 115 and does nol disclose information about ils remaimng performance obligalions for contracls
that has e an original expected duration of one y ear or less

March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021
Amount of resenue vel 1o be recognised or contracts in progress as on March 31 689 13900

The Company expecls that a significant portion of the remaining performance obligation will be completed within next 2 years

vii) Reconciliation b revenue recognised in S| of profit and loss and contract price

There is no significant v arialion between rexenue recognised in Statement of profit and loss and contraclt price except price \ ariation claims. which are considered Lo be
pari of contracl price




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except pec share data and unless stated otherwise)

18 _Oiher ingome

Murch 31, 2022 March 31, 221
Inferzit income (rom financial assets at dmarisid cost
Banh deposils 4328 5723
Others 013 113
Liabilities no longer required written back 593 884
Fair value gain on ftnancial instrument at [air value through profit and loss - ni+
N 11 |ncime 434 096
Total S5.500 68.20
19 Projects bought outs and components i
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
Inyenlories al the bewinniig of the vear 168 44 -
Projects bought outs and Components 1.332 36 533198
1,501.80 5,331.98
Insentories al the end of the vear - 1160 44)
1,501.80 5,162.54
Liss Capitafised during the vear - -
Total 1501150 S162.5
20 (Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work in pr
March 31, 2022 Muorch 31, 2021

Ins entones al the beginning ol the year
Work-in-progress 2625

Finished goods 1542 =
41.67 -
Less: imventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress - (26 25)
Finished goods (244 71) (1542)
1244.711 (4167}
Total (203.04) {4L6T)
21 _Employee benefits expense
Nirch 3, 2022 Muarch 31, 2021
Salaries.wages and bonus 23108 60294
Contribution Lo prosident and other funds 2217 58.56
Gratuily expense (refer note 29 (2)} 2663 v 69
Stall welGire sxpenges 229 30
Total 282.17 076,28
22 Finance cost
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Interest expense
- Bank 066 218
- Others 209 2.00
Total 2,75 415
23 _Depreciation anyd amortivition expense
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deprectation of properts . plant and equipment |refer nole +(a)) an7 080
Amortisation of ble nesets (reler nole 4thn 1327 11148
Total 1334 11.78

(This space is intentionally lef blank)




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

24 (a) _Other expenses

Murch 31, 2022 March 3§, 2021
Cansumiplion of stores and spare parts 223 1371
Power and [uel - [iRN
Freight and forwarding charges (net) 94 83 23817
Sile expenses and Contract labour charges 7773 163 09
Drawing. design and technical sersice charges - 567
Advertisement and sales promotion 00l 036
Renl 374 113
Rates and (axes 054 012
Insurance 244 709
Repairs and maintenance Others 1219 1889
Travelling and cony ey ance 1501 1630
Legal and professional [ees (includes pay menl to auditor, refer note 24(b)) 16 88 5150
Cominission on Sales 029 049
Prosision for impairment allowance of financial assel (nel} (+429) (28 24)
Warranly expenses (nel) (s (10 80)
Miscellaneous expenses (includes pomting, ¢ qion. postase, seeuriy svpense. 2le ) 10 57 3340
Total 173.26 510.99

{b) Payment to auditors
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

As auditor

Audil Fee 7350 61t

Tax audil lee - -

In other capacity

Olher services . -
hursement of exponies - 15

Total 7.50 6.15

25 Income Thxes

Muor'eh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Tax 1143 ¥
Deferned Tay = -
Total 143 -

The Company has compuled the tax expense as per the lax regime announced under seclion 113BAA of the Income-lax Act. 1961 Accordingls. the current tax expense
vear ended March 31. 2022 and March 31. 2021 has been determuned at the rate of 25 17%

The Company ofTset tax assets and liabulities if and only 1f 1t has a legally enforceable right (o sel off income tax assets and liabilities The Company has fax losses which
arose n India o Rs 963 73 (March 2021 Rs 1006 35) that are available for offselting for eight vears agansl [ulure taxable profils. The unabsorbed depreciation in
India 1s Rs 13 03 (March 2021 Rs 13 03) that are available for ofTselting without any limit subject lo certains terms. Deferred tax assets has not been recognised in
books because of uncertainily of future 1axable profits

26 Componeats of Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
The disaggregation of changes o OCI by each 1y pe of reserse in equily 15 shown below:

Retained Earnings

During the year ended March 31, 2022
Re-measurement gains on deflined benefit plans 14 90

Total . 14.90

During the year ended March 31,2021

Re-mensurament (loszes) on delined benefit plans (7:20)
Total (7205
=
27 Earning per share
March 31,2022 Murch 31, 2021
Nel profil allributable to the Equity shareholders of the Company 15001 +72
Weishted a\erage number of Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 2.00.00.000 2.00.00.000
Basic and Diluted Earming per share 073 [{N1ed

28 Lense commitments
Operating lease: Company as lessee
The Company had taken office buildings on a short lerm cancellable operaling lease from the Holding company During the presious year. the managemen| service
agreement was lerminated and during current year the Compam has entered into Renl agreement which includes office space from the Holding Company The Company
has also taken guest house and other equipments on a short lerm cancelfable operating lease There were no sub-leases

Future mimmum lease rental pay ables under cancellable operating ieases are as [ollows

Muoch 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Lz payments (or the vear 374 113

(This space is intentionally lefl blank)




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

29 (a) Gratuity
The Company operates a defined benefit plan viz. gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed five vears of
service gels a gratuity on departure at 15 days (minimum) of the last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an
insurance Company in the form of qualifying insurance policy The fund has formed a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees

The fund is subject to risks like changes in assets yields. In managing the plan assets, Board of Trustees reviews and manages these risks associated
with the funded plan. Each year, the Board of Trustees reviews the level of funding in the gratuity plan. The Board of Trustees aim (o keep annual
contributions relatively stable at a level such that no plan deficits (based on valuation performed) will arise

I

Changes in the net benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are as follows :

Present value of

Particulars R Fair value of plan assets Net amount
obligation
April 1, 2020 42,51 (35.45) 7.06
Current service cost 662 - 6.62
Interest expense/( income) 649 {342) 3.07
Total amount recognised in Profit or Loss 13.11 (3.42) 9.69
Experience adjusiments - (0.10) (0.10)
Transfer in/ (out) 6149 (61.49) -
Actuarial { sain)/loss from chanie in financial assumptions 7.30 - 7.30
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 68.79 (61.59) 7.20
Employer contributions - (7.06) (7.06)
Moratlity charges - (047) (0.47)
Benefits paid/transfer out (2.26) - (2.26)
March 31, 2021 122.15 (107.05) 15.10
Current service cost 12.20 - 12.20
Interest expense/(income) 295 (5.04) (2.09)
Transler in / (out) (66.83) 83.37 16.52
Total amount recognised in Profit or Loss (51.70) 78.33 26,63
Experience adjustments - - -
Actuarial { vain)loss from change i lnancial prons [13.94) (1.96) { 144.90)
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {13.94) (0.96) (14.90)
Employer contributions - (3.00) (3.00)
Moratlity charges - (0.60) (0.60)
Benefits paid/ transfer out (18.37) 18.37 -
March 31, 2022 38.14 (13.71) 24.43
The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows :
Particulars March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of funded obligation 38.14 122.15
Fair value of plan assets (13.71) (107.05)
24.43 15.10

Net Liability

Significant assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows -

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Discount rate 6.90% 6.40%
Salary growth rate
-for first year 7.00% 8.00%
-thereafter 7.00% 8.00%
Expected return on plan assets 6.40% 6.30%
Normal retirement age 60 years 60 years

Mortality table

Emplovee turnover

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Ultimate
12%

[ndian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate
10%

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

IV Sensitivity assets
The sensitivity of defined obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Assumption

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Discount rate
1 00% increase
1.00% decrease

1.00% increase

Future salary increase

Decrease by 1.91
Increase by 2.09

Increase by 1.70

Decrease by 7.81
[ncrease by 8 76

Increase by 7 38

1.00% decrease Decrease by 1,59 Decrease by 6.74
Attrition Rate

1.00% increase Decrease by 0.01 Decrease by 0.66

1.00% decrease Increase by 0.01 Increase by 0.73

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. [n practice, this is unlikely to occur
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

The following are the expected future benefit payments :

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Within next 12 months 324 13.03
Between 2-5 years 2679 50.52
Between 6-10 vears 30.75 131.55

V The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investments with Insurer (LIC of India) 100 .00% 100 00%

(b) Contribution Fund
Contributions are made to Provident Fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to
registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further
contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is Rs, 7.66 (March 31, 2021

Rs. 30.14)
The Company has also made contibution to super annuation funds and National Pension Scheme (NPS) amounting to Rs. 13.84 (March 31, 2021: Rs.
28.42)

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakh, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

30 Related party disclosures

(a) Parent entities

Sr No. Name of the entity Place of business/ Country of incorporation Ownership interest Type
March 31, March 31,
2022 2021
1 RDA Holdings Private Limited India - - |Ultimate holding company
2 Thermax Limited India 100.00% 100.00%|Holding company

(b) Fellow Subsidiaries with whom (ransactions have taken place
Sr No. |Name of the entity Place of business/ Country of incorporation
1 Thennax Engineerine Construction Company Ltd India
(c) Key Management Personnel:
Sr. No. |Name Designation
| Hermant Mohgaonkar Director (upto June 25, 2020)
2 Ravinder Advani Director (upto January 27, 2021)
3 Rajendran Arunachalam Director
4 Venkatesh Balasubramanian Director (upto May 3. 2021)
hief Executi 3,202 i 3.
- Dinesh Badgandi Chief Executive Officer (upto M%;i) 021) and Director (upto May 3
6 B. C. Mahesh Director (w.e.f. May 3, 2021)
7 Sunil Raina Director (w.e f. May 3, 2021)
8 Ravi Shewade Manager (w.e.f. May 3, 2021)
9 Dinesh Sheth Chief Financial Officer (upto July 27, 2021)
10 [Ajit Sharma Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. July 27, 2021)
11 |Kajal Kabra Company Secretary (w.e.f January 24. 2020)

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Notes to linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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(d)

(e)

(2)

Transactions with Related parties:

Terms and conditions of related party transactions

The sales to and purchases from related parties are assessed to be at anm’s length transactions by the management. Outstanding
balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Thermax Limited Thermax Engineering Total
Construction Co. Ltd
March 31, | March 31, |March 31,| March 31,| March 31, | March 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
a.Transactions during the vear
Revenue from contracts with customer 859.00 1.963.27 - - 859.00 1,963 27
Expenses Recovered 2589 18.10 - - 25.89 18.10
Purchase of Intanuible Asset - 7.05 - - - 7.05
Projects bought outs and Components - 11462 = - - 114.62
Rent paid 284 - - - 2.84 -
Management service fees - 28.69 - - - 28.69
Remuneration to Key management personnel 2545 21.57 - - 25,45 21.57
Corporate Overheads 840 12.00 - - 8.40 12.00
Repairs and 1 e : others 7.09 18.50 - - 7.09 18.50
Reimbursement of expenses 3141 768 - 0.07 3141 775
Balances with Related parties:
THERMAX LIMITED | Thermax Engineering Total
Construction Co. Ltd
March 31, | March 31, [March 31, March 31,| March 31, | March 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
b.Balances as at the yvear end
Trade receivables 140.53 587.67 - - 140.53 587.67
Customer advances 168.84 128.89 - - 168 84 128.89
Trade pavables 60.34 168.86 - 0.08 60.34 168.94
Other financial liability 32.05 149.00 - - 32.05 149.00
Corporate guarantee received 3.500 3.500 - - 3.500.00 3.500.00
KMP Remuneration
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2022 2021
Ravi Shewade 25.25 -
Dinesh Badpandi -~ 48.78
Dinesh Sheth 5.18 17.73
Ajit Shanma 15.46 -
Kaial Kabra 4.81 3.84
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31 Fair value measurements
(a)  Category of financial instruments and valuation techniques

Details of financial assets carried at amortised cost

As at As at

March 31, 2022 Murch 31, 2021
Trade receivables 772,98 1433 95
Other financial assets 1.56 126.70
Cash and cash equivalents 79.28 3.82
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.U38.81 963,52
Total 1.912.63 2,516.99
Current assets 1.911,07 239036
NOU-CUITEnt assels 1,56 126,63
Total 1.912.63 2.516.99

The management has assessed that the carrying amounts of the above fnancial instruments appoximate their fir valugs.

While caleulnting expected credit loss. the company has also considered redit reports and other related credit information for its customers to estimate the
probability of default in future and has aken into tecount estimatiss of possible effect from the pandemie relating 10 COVID =19,

Details of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Borrowings - 879
Trade payable 605,86 1.101.05
Employee related payables 26,16 12.71
Other payables 32,05 14900
Tota) 664.07 1,271.55
Current linhilitics 664.07 1,271.55
Non-current liabilitics - -
Total 664.07 1,271.55
The management has assessed that the carrying amounts of the above financial instruments appoximate their fair values,
Details of derivative liabilities

As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Derivative instruments
Derivative not designated as hedges

Foreipn exchange forward contracts 7.50 0.96
Total 7.50 0.96
Current i1abiiines 750 U.96
Non-current Habiliues - =
Total 7.50 0.96

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with banks. Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs
the use of market observable inputs which captures credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective
currencies and currency basis spreads between the respective currencies. The company has a practice to settle all derivative contracts on or before its maturity
using the sanctioned finance limits with banks, thereby eliminating both counterparty and the Company's own non-performance tisk.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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32

i

Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and borrowings. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance
the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans. trade and other teceivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive
directly from its operations

Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification. measurement and monitoring. subject to risk limits
and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is
accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk

The Commpany’s Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approviny the risk strategies and principles

Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
equity prices. whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all investments traded in the
market

Market risk is managed on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across various asset categories. diversification of assets in terms of geographical
distribution and industry concentration. a continuous appraisal of market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short term changes in
fair value

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

Cormpany is not currently exposed significantly to such risk.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and relevant assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s
functional currency. Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates

Price risk
The Company is not exposed to such kind of risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract. leading to a financial loss The
Coimpany is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and contract assets) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks. foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. in addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into
homogenous group and assessed for impainment collectively. The calculation is based on losses as per historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in notes 8 above. The charge of impainnent to Statement of profit and loss is
diclosed in note 24(a) above The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several
Jjurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets

Financial instruments and bank depeosits

Credit risk from balances with banks, mutual funds, loans and other financial assets are managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with
the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties having a good market reputation and within credit limits
assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential
failure to make payments

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for bank balances and deposits as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is the carrying amounts as
disclosed in Note 5(a), 9(a) and 9(b)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

The management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition. the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting future cash flows and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal requirements.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below summarises the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity profile based on contractual undiscounted payments

March 31, 2022 <1 year 1 to 3 vears >3 vears
Non- derivative
Borrowings - - -
Trade Payables 605 86 - =
Other financial liabilities
Employee related payable 26.16 - -
Cther Pavables 32.05
March 31, 2021 <1year 1 to 3 years >3 years
Non- derivative
Borrowings 8.79 - =
Trade Payables 1,101.05 - =
Other financial liabilities
Employee related payable 12.71 - <

Other Payables 149.00 - =
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33 Key Financial Ratios

Tl Foliowrnu are oonfytical rones (o tie vear ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
icul N tor D inat As at Variance Reasons for vari
Particulars Numerato enominator March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 ance
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 138 113 2%
. Total debti e borrowings .
Debt-equity ratio N Shareholder's equit: - 002 -100% .
ebt-equity (current+Non current) quity °  |Bank overdraft outstanding at the end
of previous year has been fully paid
. . Eamings available for debt . during the yea
Debt service coverage ratio = S Debt service * 2 159 _loo% |during the year
service’
Improvement in profit is on account of
) ] . reduction in overall costs such as
R n equity ratio Profit after tax Average shareholder's equi 026 001 2626%
eturn on equity g quity ®  |employee benefit expenses and other|
expenses
Change in inventory turnover ratio is
Inventory tumnover ratio Cost of goods sold# Average inventories 570 48 51 -88% fon account of decrease in product
business and corresponding inventory
Reduction in debtors tumover ratio is
. Revenue from contracts with . on account of recovery of aged
Debtors turnover ratio Average trade receivables 171 468 -64% R vy . g
cuslomers receivables on account of projec
closure during the year
i i 2 -50% . Lo
Trade payables tumover ratio Total supplier purchases Average trade payables 04 405 50% Change in the ratio is on account of]
eduction in overall business activities
. . Revenue from contracts with . . during th
Net capital turnover ratio Working capital ** 304 2002 859, |dunng the year
customers
Net profit ralio Profit after tax Rev?:;:ﬁ S"Josr[r:);:tracts 008 000 10507% |lmprovement in profit is on account ol
s reduction in overall costs such as
} } employee benefit expenses and other
Retum on capital employed (ROCE) Profit before tax + finance cost Capital employed *** 025 002 1279% expenses (including reversal of projec
related provisions due to completion
Return on investment (ROI) Profit after tax Shareholder's equity 023 00! 2275%  |of milestones)

Explanations:

~ Profit after tax + finance cost + depreciation and amortization for the year
* Current borrowings + Interest paid

** Total current assets - Total current liabilities

*** Total equity

#Projects bought outs and components consurmed + Increase in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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34 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management. capital includes issued equity capital to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital
management is to maximise the shareholder value The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, No changes were made in the
objectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Trade payables 605.86 1.101 .05
Current Borrowings - 8.79
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1.138.00) 11092 413
Net debt (532.23) 17.43
Equity 652,93 488 02
(apital and net debt (1,185.16) (470.59)

35 Other Statutory Information
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property
(it) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intenmediaries) with the understanding
that the {ntermediary shall:
(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vii) The Company has not made any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),

36 Standards issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below

(i) Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not
be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April {, 2022. The Company is in the process of evaluating the amendment.

(ii) Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that the "cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the "costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property. plant and equipinent used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendiment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1. 2022,
although early adoption is pennitted. The Company is in the process of evaluating the amendiment.

For SRBC & CO LLP. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
LCAl Firm Remistrjtion
Y

Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited

el «
per Vaibhav Kumar Gupta k/mu/h:h’///

Partner Director Director
Meimbership No. 213935 DIjw 06651816 - DIN: 08446343

g ape? -
4,5,!///_ _g/

0.1 324982E/E300003

Rajendrin Arunachalam

Z

RAvi Shewade Kjit Sharma Kajal Kabra
Manager Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date: May 12, 2022 Date: May 12, 2022
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REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THERMAX COOLING SOLUTIONS LlM!wEa!ﬂm

ION 23 c) OF COMPANIES ACT, 20 PLA THE EFFECT OF THE SCHEM F
ARRANGEMENT ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS (PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS]),

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs) AND DIRECTORS ADOPTED BY IT AT ITS MEETING HELD ON
TUESDAY, 20 DECEMBER 2022

1. BACKGROUND

1.1. As per section 232(2}(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), a report adopted by the Board of
Directors of the Company explaining effect of the arrangement on equity shareholders (including
promoters and non-promoter shareholders), Key Managerial Personnel (“KMPs”), and Directors of
the Company and laying out in particular the share exchange ratio, is required to be circulated to
the shareholders / creditors of the Company if meeting of such shareholders / creditors is required
to be convened as per the directions of the National Company Law Tribunal. This report is
accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

1.2. The following documents were, inter alia, placed before the Board:

1.2.1. Scheme of Arrangement between Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited (“Demerged
Company” or “ the Company”) and Thermax Instrumentation Limited (“Resulting
Company”) and their respective shareholders under sections 230 to 232 read with section
66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules and regulations
framed thereunder (“Scheme”).

1.2.2. Draft statutory Auditors’ Certificate dated 19 December 2022 issued by SRBC & Co. LLP,
the statutory auditors of the Demerged Company as required under section 232(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 certifying that the accounting treatment in the draft Scheme is in
accordance with the accounting standards and applicable law;

1.2.3. Valuation report dated 20 December 2022 (“Valuation Report”) as submitted by Mr. CA
Harsh Chandrakant Ruparelia, Chartered Accountant, Registered Valuer - Securities or
Financial Assets, describing the methodology adopted in arriving at the share entitlement
ratio in relation to the Scheme. The share entitlement ratio recommended by the Valuer is
as follows:

"85 (Eighty-Five) 10% Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
(“NCRPS”) of INR 100 (Rupees Hundred) each of the Resulting Company shall be issued and
allotted for every 1,000 (One Thousand) fully paid-up equity share of INR 10* (Rupees Ten)
each held in the Demerged Company”

* On capital reduction becoming effective as provided in the Scheme, INR 10 to be read as
INR 5.

No special valuation difficulties were observed or reported in the valuation report.

<
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THERMAX

2. EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS (PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTERS) OF
THE DEMERGED COMPANY

2.1.  As far as the promoter and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company are concerned,
pursuant to the Scheme they will continue to remain shareholders of the Demerged Company.

2.2, Part B of the Scheme provides for reorganization of share capital and reduction of paid-up share
capital of the Demerged Company such that upon the Scheme coming into effect, the issued, subscribed
and paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company shall stand reduced from INR 20,00,00,000
(Rupees Twenty Crores Only) divided into 2,00,00,000 (Two Crores Only) equity shares with face
value of INR 10 (Rupees Ten Only) per equity share to INR 10,00,00,000 (Rupees Ten Crores Only)
divided into 2,00,00,000 (Two Crores Only) equity shares with face value of INR 5 (Rupees Five Only)
per equity share without any payment or consideration to the shareholders of the Demerged Company
for effecting such reduction in face value and paid-up value per equity share, without any further act or
deed.

2.3.  Pursuant to the aforementioned reduction of share capital, the face value of equity shares of the
Demerged Company shall stand reduced to INR 5 (Rupees Five Only) per equity share and
consequently, the authorised share capital of the Demerged Company shall stand reorganised from:

INR 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crores Only) divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five Crore Only) equity shares
having face value of INR 10 each (Rupees Ten) to 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crores) equity shares having face
value of INR 5 (Rupees Five) each.

2.4.  The aforesaid reduction of the share capital pursuant to this Scheme shall be given effect as an integral
part of the Scheme and the consent given to the Scheme by the shareholders and the creditors of the
respective Companies shall be deemed to be their consent under the provisions of Section 66 of the Act
and all other applicable provisions of the Act read with applicable rules & regulations framed in this
regard to such reduction of capital and shall not be required to convene any separate meeting for that
purpose. The order of the NCLT or such other authority sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be
an Order under Section 66 of the Act. Notwithstanding, the reduction of issued, subscribed and paid-up
equity share capital of the Demerged Company, the Demerged Company shall not be required to add
“And Reduced” as suffix to its name.

2.5.  On demerger, the Resulting Company will issue and allot Redeemable Preference Shares (terms and
conditions of the same are mentioned in Annexure 1 of the Scheme) to each member of the Demerged
Company whose name is in the register of members as on the record date, as per the share entitle ratio
mentioned in the Scheme.

3. EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON THE KMPs OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY

3.1. There will be no impact on the KMPs and directors of the Demerged Company pursuant to the Scheme.
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4. ADOPTION OF THE REPORT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THERMAX

The Board of Directors have adopted this report after noting and considering the information set forth in this
report.

By order of the Board
For Thermax Cooling Solutions Limited

Ajit Sharma

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Pune

Date: December 20, 2022
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